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Thursday, February 9, 2017
--- On commencing at 9:31 a.m.

MS. SPOEL:  Good morning.  Please be seated.

Good morning.  The Board is sitting this morning in application number EB-2016-0155, which is a service area amendment application filed by E.L.K. Energy on June 21st, 2016.  This application is being contested by the incumbent utility, Hydro One Networks Inc.

My name is Cathy Spoel, and I will be the presiding member today, and with me on the Panel are Victoria Christie and Emad Elsayed.

As you are all aware, in Procedural Order 3, which was dated December 20th, 2016, the Board indicated that it required a better understanding of the costs and distribution rate impacts of E.L.K. and Hydro One's competing offers to connect the customer, Sellick Equipment Limited.

We've provided for a one-day hearing to hear witnesses on the following specific issues:  the fully loaded connection costs, the comparison of economic efficiency of the competing proposals, the impact of incremental sub-transmission charges on E.L.K.'s customers, and the impact of incremental embedded distributor charges on Hydro One's customers.

We accept that there will be no impact one way or the other on service quality or reliability, so we do not need to hear evidence on those issues.  We also accept the customer's preference that E.L.K. be the distributor, so we do not need to hear evidence on that issue.  We will deal with that in due course in our decision, but we don't need confirmation of that.  We accept that from the material and the arguments that have already been filed.  So we would like to spend our relatively limited time on the specific issues outlined in Procedural Order No. 3.

With respect to schedule, we are starting with E.L.K.'s evidence-in-chief, followed by cross-examination by Hydro One and Board Staff, and then Hydro One's evidence.  If there is time, we will consider doing oral argument today, but our main concern is to make sure that we get through all the evidence in the one day that we have set aside.  So we will proceed on that expectation.

Before we begin, first of all, could I have appearances, please.
Appearances:


MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, good morning, Madam Chair, Panel.  My name is John Vellone.  I am on for the applicant, E.L.K. Energy.  With me today is Erin Peters.  Erin is an articling student in my firm and is going to be attempting to navigate us on the computer screens this morning.

I will also do a quick appearance for the gentleman sitting behind me.  That is Mr. Ken Thoman of Sellick Equipment.

MS. SPOEL:  Good morning, Mr. Thoman.

Yes, thank you, Mr. Vellone.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Good morning, Madam Chair and members of the Panel.  My name is Michael Engelberg.  I am here as counsel for Hydro One Networks Inc., and with me to my right are Joanne Richardson, director of major projects and partnerships in our regulatory affairs group.  And to my left is Mr. Pasquale Catalano, who is a regulatory advisor in our regulatory affairs group.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.

MR. LANNI:  Good morning.  My name is Richard Lanni, counsel for the Board.  To my right is Irina Kuznetsova, Board Staff, and to my left is Keith Ritchie, Board Staff.

MS. SPOEL:  Are there any other appearances?
Preliminary Matters:


All right.  Are there any preliminary matters before we begin?

MR. VELLONE:  I do have two very brief preliminary matters, Madam Chair.  The first relates to the scope of the application that was initially filed in April of 2016.  In that application there were two parcels of land that were identified as in scope for the service area amendment.

I just want to make clear for the purposes of today that the applicant is formally and has formally withdrawn its request for the inclusion of the developer's land -- that is, the pin parcel with a pin that ends in 0253 -- from the scope of the application, so we can really focus today on the Sellick equipment parcel of land.

MS. SPOEL:  All right.  Thank you.  We understood that to be the case.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  Just wanted to make sure we're clear.

MS. SPOEL:  Yes.  Appreciate that.

MR. VELLONE:  The second clarification question relates to issue number 4 in your Procedural Order No. 3.  In that issue the Board asked for information related to the impact of incremental embedded distributor charges on Hydro One's customers.

In my discussions with my client in preparing for the oral hearing, I learned that the other charges that may flow to Hydro One may be classified as embedded distributor charges or may be called something else.

So I am wondering if we could possibly amend that issue to say incremental embedded distributor charges or other charges.  I don't want it to be a nomenclature problem, I think is the issue.

MS. SPOEL:  Do you have any objection to that, Mr. Engelberg?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Hydro One has no objection to that.  It is going to be Hydro One's evidence that the charges that are made are what they are and not what they're necessarily named.

MS. SPOEL:  Right, okay.

MR. VELLONE:  We're in agreement.

MS. SPOEL:  I don't think our intention was to narrow it.  I think that was a general description of the sorts of charges.  So if they're called something else, that's fine. The issue is, what are the charges.

MR. VELLONE:  Perfect.  Thank you.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.

With that, Mr. Vellone, could you introduce your witness panel, and then we will have them affirmed.

MR. VELLONE:  Absolutely.  Could each of you just state your name for the benefit of the record.

MR. DANELON:  Mark Danelon, director of finance and regulatory affairs at E.L.K. Energy.

MR. MACAULAY:  Norm Macaulay, operations manager at E.L.K. Energy.

MR. BACON:  Bruce Bacon, rate consultant to E.L.K.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Good morning, I am just going to read a couple of statements of oath and then I would ask that, after each one, you would respond "I do" if you agree with the statement.
E.L.K. ENERGY INC. - PANEL 1
Norm Macaulay,
Mark Danelon,
Bruce Bacon; Affirmed.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Thank you.

MR. VELLONE:  CVs were distributed to all of the parties in advance of today's oral hearing.  I can, briefly, introduce the witnesses' background and roles, if that would be helpful for the Panel.

MS. SPOEL:  Yes.  Just a brief introduction would be helpful.
Examination-in-Chief by Mr. Vellone:


MR. VELLONE:  Sure.

Mr. Macaulay, my understanding is you're the operations manager for E.L.K. Energy and have been so for the past 16 years?

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  And prior to your current position you were the lead hand at E.L.K. Energy?

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  For about two-and-a-half years?

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  And you have an education in electronics engineering technology; is that correct?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Including a diploma as an engineering technician?

MR. MACAULAY:  Correct.

MR. VELLONE:  And how long have you been working in an engineering role in total?

MR. MACAULAY:  In total, 18 to 19 years.

MR. VELLONE:  And as an engineering tech?

MR. MACAULAY:  Near 30 years.

MR. VELLONE:  What was your responsibility for this application?

MR. MACAULAY:  I, as operations manager, I ultimately oversaw and was responsible for the technical implementation of the offers to connect to the customer, including determining the cost prior to director of finance review.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you.

Mr. Danelon, am I correct that you are currently the director of finance and regulatory affairs for E.L.K. Energy?

MR. DANELON:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  And I understand you have been in that position for about a year now?

MR. DANELON:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Prior to that you were the manager of finance and regulatory affairs for E.L.K. Energy?

MR. DANELON:  Correct.

MR. VELLONE:  How long were you doing that role?

MR. DANELON:  Approximately eight years.

MR. VELLONE:  Before you worked with E.L.K. you were a senior accountant with Deloitte; is that correct?

MR. DANELON:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  How long were you working there?

MR. DANELON:  Approximately five years.

MR. VELLONE:  You are a chartered accountant with a background in business admin?

MR. DANELON:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  What was your responsibility for the application?

MR. DANELON:  I oversaw the entire application, together with the operations manager.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Mr. Danelon.

Mr. Bacon, you may not need introduction for some of the folks in the room, but I will do it anyway.  You are currently a senior utility rate consultant with Borden Ladner; is that correct?

MR. BACON:  Yes, I am.

MR. VELLONE:  How long have you been doing that?

MR. BACON:  I'm in my tenth year.

MR. VELLONE:  What does that role entail?

MR. BACON:  Basically helping LDC clients prepare the cost-of-service rate applications, including helping them in respect of cost allocation and rate design.  In a typical year I will help between eight and ten utilities with their cost allocation and rate design models along with other items in the preparation of their applications.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Mr. Bacon.

Prior to your work with Borden Ladner you worked with Elenchus as a senior consultant basically doing the same thing?

MR. BACON:  Yes, I did.

MR. VELLONE:  You have an education in mathematics?

MR. BACON:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  What was your involvement in this application?

MR. BACON:  I advised E.L.K. on the rate impacts of the various proposals of the new customer.  Specifically I am responsible for the preparation of E.L.K.'s response to HONI One's second round.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Mr. Bacon.

Now, Mr. Danelon and Mr. Macaulay --


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Vellone, before we proceed any further I wonder if we should mark the material you submitted yesterday, which was your compendium and also the CVs, as an exhibit?

MR. LANNI:  If the Panel cares, we have additional copies of the compendium.

MS. SPOEL:  We received them, thank you.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  So let's mark the E.L.K. compendium as Exhibit K1.1.


EXHIBIT NO. K1.1:  E.L.K. compendium with CVs

MS. SPOEL:  My copy has the CVs attached to it, so I don't think we need to mark them separately.

MR. LANNI:  While we are at it, we can mark Hydro One's compendium as Exhibit K1.2.
EXHIBIT NO. K1.2:  Hydro One compendium and CVs

MS. CHRISTIE:  Sorry, what was that?

MR. LANNI:  K1.2.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.

MR. VELLONE:  There's one more item we can probably get marked as an exhibit while we're doing this.

At tab 2 of our compendium, we included a system map.  We were asked to bring a larger copy, so we did bring a blown-up copy that can be handed out in the room, and I might just get that marked as an exhibit.  It is the same picture; it is just bigger.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.

MR. LANNI:  Let's mark that map as Exhibit K1.3.
EXHIBIT NO. K1.3:  System map

MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I believe that the Hydro One CVs were provided separately.  So to be consistent with the marking of Exhibit K1.1, may we include the Hydro One CVs as part of the Hydro One compendium, Exhibit K1.2?

MS. SPOEL:  Yes, we will do that.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

Mr. Danelon and Mr. Macaulay, was E.L.K.’s service area amendment application, as amended and including all of your interrogatory responses, prepared by you or under your supervision?

MR. DANELON:  Yes.

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  And do you adopt this evidence as your own this proceeding?

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes.

MR. DANELON:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  Are there any corrections you would like to make to the evidence?

MR. BACON:  Yes.  I would like to discuss one, specifically in the compendium, E.L.K.'s compendium, tab 1.  It is up on the screen before us.

This is an update to the table provided in E.L.K.'s response to Hydro One's second round, part B, and part 2 of that answer.

And everybody has it in front of them?  Are we good?  Good.

Now, there is some yellow on this particular table.  The table now shows a monthly service charge for each scenario, and a rate rider for disposition of global adjustment.

Previously, it was thought that Sellick became a customer of Hydro One, and E.L.K.'s charged Hydro One for this customer under embedded distributor rate structure. E.L.K. would be downstream of an existing retail meter; an additional retail meter would not be needed.

However, during the preparation of this hearing, it became clear that this may not be the case, an additional retail meter might be needed in the embedded distributor rate structure would be used.

This would mean a monthly service charge needs to be added to the analysis which you are seeing there in the first line, the monthly service rate up at the top of the table there.

In addition, the settlement of global adjustment for Hydro One is completed on an actual basis and there should be no global adjustment variance for Hydro One, because they actually pay the actual global adjustment rate.

As a result, the rate rider for disposition of global adjustment was previously not included.  However, a review of the most recent rate order for E.L.K. indicates the rate rider for disposition of global adjustment is an approved rate of the OEB, which means it must be charged.  And as a result, those in the embedded distributor rate have to be charged this amount, and so we have included that in that second row that is highlighted in yellow.

If I go down to what's called -- I call it the cost analysis, down below, you will see now that the monthly service rate is included in the cost analysis.

Going down to -- now, the distribution volumetric line in the cost analysis has changed to reflect the fact that the volume used should be without losses, and previously it was including losses.  So for example, the 1,200 kilowatts should be used in the set of the 1284 kilowatts in the 100 percent case, and this applies to the distribution volumetric rate which I discussed, as well as the distribution -- the disposition of deferral and variance accounts, disposition of global adjustment account, and the low voltage service rate.  And the volumes used here would be without losses.

And what happens when you make all of those changes and you add them up, that changes the total monthly line, which also was -- there was actually an arithmetic error there.  It was totalling everything in the table, but now it just totals the costs, so that's been changed.  And when that is changed, the total annual line, since it is the total monthly line times 12, has been changed as well, corrected, and I have also added a line to show the total with HST.

When all of these changes are made, I believe now consistent with the Hydro One analysis showing the total delivery charges from E.L.K. to Hydro One under the embedded distributor rate structure.

MR. MACAULAY:  I have one clarification to the evidence; it is not really a correction.  So this is in response, E.L.K.'s response of September 8th to HONI 6.  It is before you on the screen.

In the September 8, 2016, response, which is shown on the screen, this is in relation to the E.L.K. pole that was relocated.  The response to this interrogatory states, and I quote:

“The applicant’s connection point would now be 2.072 kilometres with the pole having been relocated.  This places the applicant's existing distribution assets 0.037 kilometres closer to the area subject of the service area application.”

I want to clarify that the intent of this response was to indicate that E.L.K.'s point of connection was 37 metres further from the delivery point than HONI's proposed point of connection.

This is different than HONI's distance of 2.035 kilometres from delivery point and E.L.K.'s distance of 2.072 kilometres from delivery point.

If you are interested in the distance E.L.K.'s point of connection actually moved, then that was a change of 12 metres from the original 2.060 kilometres from delivery point to 2.072 kilometres from delivery point.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Mr. Bacon, Mr. Macaulay.  I might just pause quickly here to see if you wanted to clarify any of those corrections.  Or should I just continue with in-chief?  No?  Okay, thank you.

Pursuant to Procedural Order No. 3, the Board determined that it would like to hear from the E.L.K. witnesses in response of four specific issues. I think we are going to work through each of those issues in turn for in-chief.

I am going to apologize in advance.  The part on the rates is a little bit longer than in-chief usually would be, but it is fairly confusing and I think spending time up front might be helpful.

MS. SPOEL:  Appreciated.

MR. VELLONE:  Mr. Macauley, perhaps you could get us started by speaking to the first issue identified in Procedural Order No. 3 with a description of how E.L.K. determined its fully loaded connection cost for this customer.

MR. MACAULAY:  Thank you, Mr. Vellone.

Madam Chair and Board Panel members, I would like to take a few -- make a few brief remarks and provide some context in E.L.K.'s calculation of connection costs, that’s the connection costs for the customers $8,702.67.  This figure includes the costs determined in the customer supplied high voltage distribution system, supply and install of the secondary metering, and the commissioning of the customer supplied high voltage distribution system.

In preparing the cost estimates, we were conservative.  We don't like to go back to our customers looking for more money after we made the connection.  This has been our practice, and we continue with this.

We did not include the costs to supply the 600 voltage pad-mounted transformer or the ancillary equipment required to connect it.  Similarly, we also did not include the costs associated with the underground switching apparatus or underground infrastructure, as the customer would be responsible for supplying this.

The other item we did not include in the calculation of fully loaded cost was the $8,432.49 cost for the relocation of the existing 45-foot pole at the intersection of Roseborough and Clark Street, and the related installation of a new 45-foot pole required to meet the new engineered standards for the distribution system.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Mr. Macaulay.  Why were the costs to relocate the pole excluded from E.L.K.'s calculation of fully loaded connection costs?

MR. MACAULAY:  The scope of the work for the pole reallocation allowed for the road expansion while minimizing the costs to be charged at the request of the municipality.

The costs were excluded because they were -- they would have been incurred in any event; that is to say, E.L.K. would have moved the pole in the exact same manner, regardless of whether it or Hydro One ultimately provides service to Sellick.

We moved the pole to where we did because it was the most effective way to respond to the municipality's relocation request while continuing to supply power to -- along Clark Street to our existing customers.

Because the costs were not related to us, connecting Sellick, it wouldn't be appropriate for us to charge this to Sellick.  This is a point Hydro One agrees with as well.

And I'm reading from their evidence now, page 7 of HONI's intervenor evidence filed September 22nd, 2016.  It is before you on the screen:

“The customer should not be responsible for the relocation charges that resulted from expansion of a municipal roadway, charges that should be a responsibility of the municipality or, if any arrangement has been made, the developer.  Either way, Hydro One agrees the charges are a cost of the connection, but they should not be recovered from the customer unless these costs were specifically triggered by the customer."

The relocation of the pole does not at all affect the costs E.L.K. has forecasted to connect Sellick.  The scope of work is identical whether we use the new pole or the existing pole that was there.

In terms of the customer's cost, the relocation pole makes it slightly cheaper for the customer to connect, as it is 15 metres closer for their underground distribution system.

So the relocation benefits Sellick in a very small way by shortening their duct run and their trenching by 15 metres in their cable length, but it has no bearings on the costs charged or incurred by E.L.K.

It was always going to be the customer's job to get service to the pole, so Sellick would be incurring the costs regardless of where the pole was located.

MR. VELLONE:  So who is paying for the costs of the relocation?

MR. MACAULAY:  Certainly not Sellick.  As typical for road relocation requests, the municipality, the costs have been billed to the Town of Essex.

MR. VELLONE:  This was an issue raised by OEB Staff in their submissions, and I thought I would just put the question straight to you.  Why did you move the pole when you did?

MR. MACAULAY:  We have a picture up on the screen from Appendix 1 of E.L.K.'s November 10th interrogatory responses.

There seems to be some confusion about this pole.  The pole was always located in Hydro One's service territory.  It had been in its original location since before the inception of E.L.K. in 2000.

The pole in question is an E.L.K. asset that is necessary to serve our customers to the east of Roseborough Road.  The pole had to be moved when it did because the new road was being constructed.  The curb was installed, the road bed was compacted, the site was prepared for asphalt.  If the pole hadn't been relocated at that point in time the civil crew would have left the site and gone on to another job and the developer wouldn't have been able to finish their project at the time.

The new roadway was going to go in regardless of the outcome of the service rate amendment application.  It was completely unrelated.  Knowing that the pole would have to move regardless of the outcome of the service area amendment application, we didn't see any reason to leave it there, since this would have stopped the entire project.

The photograph that's on the computer screen in front of you, you can see where the existing -- the old pole or existing pole was located by the red circle in the road, basically along the stop line in the paved portion of the roadway.

Over to the right is where the new pole was -- is now.  You can see the reason we had to relocate the pole.  It is because once the roadway is extended westward our existing fly tap pole on the west side of Roseborough Road would be left in the middle of the paved street.

We met with the municipality to discuss the location of the pole or the relocation of the pole, location where it could be.  We determined the existing pole should be removed from the roadway to behind the curb outside of the turn radius for the truck traffic at the intersection.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Mr. Macaulay.

Perhaps I am going to move on to Mr. Danelon now to speak to the second issue in Procedural Order No. 3.

Could you summarize your views on the comparison of economic efficiency of the competing proposals?

MR. DANELON:  Certainly.  As Mr. Macaulay stipulated, E.L.K.'s offer to connect totals $8,702.67, which compares to Hydro One, if I will just ask on the screen before you, it's E.L.K.'s November 10th filing, Number 2(i).  Thank you, Ms. Peters.  As opposed to Hydro One's offer to connect, which totals $16,103.17.

Their cost includes the installation and supply of two poles, one being a Class 2 55-foot Bell tangent pole, as well as a Class 3 45-foot wood crossing pole.  As well their cost includes an installation and supply of approximately 22 metres of conductor with anchors, switches, terminations, meters, CTs, and PTs.

So I have prepared a diagram to try to simplify the comparison of the OTCs.  This was the diagram that was passed out just a short time ago, Exhibit K1.13.

This diagram illustrates the existing HONI M7 feeder running along the east side of Roseborough.  As well, the presence of the E.L.K. poles with the green circles and the poles proposed to be added by Hydro One, which is marked with the red Xs.

Now, both utilities are trying -- are -- intend to draw power from the existing M7 feeder to supply the poles that are located on the northeast corner of the Sellick lot.  And both utilities are forecasting a similar scope of work related to the metering, terminations, CTs, and PTs.

Now, I just want to bring that the key difference between the two proposals is that E.L.K. has an existing pole on the northeast corner of the Sellick lot which significantly reduces E.L.K.'s costs.

The pole was an existing asset that was used to feed the services on Clark Street, which is perpendicular to the Roseborough Street.  So the presence of this existing asset meant that E.L.K. could complete the connection without installing two of the proposed poles that Hydro One is proposing.

So this is the reason why we suspect Hydro One is making a significant deal about the poles.  In E.L.K.'s view it was a simple, routine, municipal road allowance pole relocation.

MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, can I just ask you, on this map that you have given us, Clark Street, is that the one that goes east-west to the north of the Sellick Equipment property?

MR. DANELON:  It would be servicing this part of the Clark Street.

MS. SPOEL:  Oh, okay.  That is Clark Street.  And then the other one, the north-south, I guess it's --


MR. DANELON:  Roseborough?

MS. SPOEL:  Is that other street?  Okay, fine.  Thank you.

MR. DANELON:  You're welcome.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Mr. Danelon.

While I have you speaking, perhaps I could get you to introduce the materials that were included in Exhibit K1.1, the applicant's compendium, at tabs 4, 5, and 6.

MR. DANELON:  Certainly.  So before you is map 4 -- sorry, tab 4, the Town of Essex mapping, and here you can see the Sellick Equipment lot, which is the subject of the service area amendment highlighted in green and identified with the number 5.

On the same map, you will see -- we have identified eight other customers that are located in Hydro One's service territory and are Hydro One customers that are serviced on the same segment of the M7 line.  We have also provided addresses for each of these eight customers more for informational services.

Now, tabs 5 and 6 of the compendium include correspondence that's relevant to the settlement of the 2005 calendar year and a number of long-term load -- long-term load transfer customers between E.L.K. and Hydro One, including these eight other customers that are highlighted in red before you.  We have included these e-mails so Hydro One could review their records.

Now, some of the relevant facts and important to the context of this proceeding that I want to kind of make clear is, first, E.L.K. is designated as a wholesale market participant at the Harrow North PME, which is located upstream from all of these customers, including Sellick.

Because of this, Hydro One has historically charged E.L.K. gross ST charges and the IESO has historically charged E.L.K. gross commodity and regulatory charges associated with all of these customers.

Now, second is that these eight customers highlighted in red are not located behind the Hydro One retail point of supply.  And consequently, these customers do not attract the E.L.K. embedded distributor rate.

So it's not clear in the evidence whether or not Hydro One intends to install a new retail point of supply for Sellick.  If they do, they would attract the embedded distributor rate.  If they don't, they wouldn't.

So that's why we thought it was important for the Board to understand how settlement has historically been handled between E.L.K. and Hydro One for other similarly-situated customers, specifically those in red.

So for these customers -- again the ones highlighted in red -- E.L.K. and Hydro One have historically settled ST charges, the commodity charges, and regulatory charges as if the customer qualified as a long term load transfer customer, what I like to call pseudo long-term load transfer customer.  And I use the word pseudo in this case because Hydro One owns the M7 feeder.

So consequently, this situation does not technically meet the definition of a long term load transfer.  However, because of the unique arrangement where E.L.K. is the wholesale market participant at the Harrow North PME, Hydro One, together with E.L.K., have come to an agreement on the settlement methodology that effectively is the same historically what's been done for other long-term load transfers.

I also understand in this case that Hydro One has proposed that they would charge E.L.K. on a net basis for ST charges related to Sellick.

But my observation is simply that this has never been done in the past before for any other customer serviced along the M7. So we don't understand why Hydro One would treat Sellick any differently than they are the other customers, specifically these eight red.

MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, could I just interrupt you for one second because this is, like this is -- well, can you just sort of slow down a bit.  So the customers in red --


MR. DANELON:  Correct.

MS. SPOEL:  -- are Hydro One customers.

MR. DANELON:  Correct.

MS. SPOEL:  They're served off the Hydro One's M7 line?

MR. DANELON:  Line, correct.

MS. SPOEL:  But because E.L.K. is the wholesale market participant, you and Hydro One treat them as if they were long-term load transfer customers?

MR. DANELON:  That's correct.

MS. SPOEL:  So what does that mean, in terms of how they're billed?  Like what is -- I don't understand what the impact of that is, because I don't understand the nuances of the different rates or the billing systems as between E.L.K. and Hydro One.

So maybe you could explain that to us.

MR. VELLONE:  Absolutely.  I have asked Mr. Bacon to speak to that directly in-chief and that is really --


MS. SPOEL:  Okay, so we will hear that from Mr. Bacon, because this is interesting, but doesn't mean much to us without perhaps an example of what it means in terms of the numbers.  Thank you.

Sorry.  I didn’t -- yes.

MR. DANELON:  So in addition, Hydro One is proposing to settle customers that qualify for the embedded distributor rate on a net basis in connection with our active application.

We weren't comfortable with that request, and rather Hydro One and E.L.K. reached a compromise where E.L.K. continues to bill Hydro One behind a retail point of supply using the embedded distributor rate.

So our expectation is that similar billing settlement arrangements would apply to Sellick.  And, Madam Chair, as you had mentioned, Mr. Bacon will speak more specifically to exactly how those settlements have been completed in the past from a numbers standpoint.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you very much, Mr. Danelon.

Mr. Bacon, I think the suspense in the room is waiting on you to shed some light on this.  Could you speak to the last two issues in the Board's Procedural Order No. 3?

MR. BACON:  Yes,  I would be happy to.  I must admit I found this whole exercise very confusing, so I have tried to put something together to reduce the confusion and help me understand it.

So in order to do that, I prepared this table and I apologize; it may take some time to get through it.  But I hope in the end it will save us time, so that we will have a better understanding of what actually is going on.

MS. SPOEL:  Where would we find that table?

MR. BACON:  That table is in tab 3 of our compendium, of E.L.K.'s compendium.

MS. SPOEL:  Yes.

MR. BACON:  Everybody have that?

MS. SPOEL:  Yes, thank you.

MR. BACON:  Okay?  Good.

MS. SPOEL:  I think it is probably time well spent, Mr. Bacon, because we are confused as well.

MR. BACON:  To be honest with you, I needed this in order to prepare, and so that’s -- I found it helpful.  So hopefully it helps everybody else as well.

Now, I would like you to take you through each scenario and this -- so I have already told you it has taken some time.  The first scenario is titled “E.L.K.” up at the corner there on the left, which is shown -- this first block has information showing costs, rates, and volumes for the various scenarios.  I call that a block of information.

This first block shows the monthly bill of $49, 165.22.  This is to Sellick, assuming Sellick is an E.L.K. customer.

Now, this information is similar to the information that was provided in an E.L.K. October 6, 2016, letter from file EB-2016-155.

It is similar to the information that is shown in the last page of that filing, the spreadsheet titled “100 percent Load”, which the calculation there was $49,255.28.  However, this calculation shown on this block here has been updated to take number - to use a volume number without losses that's been applied to the E.L.K. rate rider for disposition of deferral and variance accounts, E.L.K. rate rider for disposition of global adjustment, and low voltage charges.

You will probably remember that is kind of the investigation corrections I made in that other table as well, so you can see how we figured all of that out. All right.  So that is that block.

The second block is titled “H1”, which stands for Hydro One, and it consists of a block of data similar to the E.L.K. block.  And this block shows the monthly bill to Sellick of $50,104.71.  This assumes Sellick is a Hydro One customer, and this is what Hydro One would charge them.  And this information is consistent with the information provided in the October 6th letter.

Now, we move on to the third and fourth blocks.  The third one is shown here and the fourth is shown on the second page, but we will get to that.

So in these two cases, it is assumed Sellick --


MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, Mr. Bacon, can I interrupt you for a second?

So these first two blocks, this is the bill that Sellick would pay?

MR. BACON:  Yes.

MS. SPOEL:  So it is pretty close, but it is 49,000 Something, and if they’re an E.L.K. customer, that's their monthly bill using the same volumes.

MR. BACON:  Right.

MS. SPOEL:  And if their a Hydro One customer, it is just over fifty thousand for exactly the same volume and exactly the same service?

MR. BACON:  Yes, exactly.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay, fine.  I just wanted to make sure that this is what Sellick pays.

MR. BACON:  Right.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay, great.  Thank you.

MR. BACON:  Now, that is the easy part.  The third and fourth blocks are titled -- the first one is E.L.K. charge to Hydro One under pseudo LTL.  And the second block on the second page is called E.L.K. charges to Hydro One under embedded distributor rates with a retail meter installed.

Now in these two cases, it is assumed Sellick is a Hydro One customer and these are the costs that E.L.K. will charge Hydro One under the two possible arrangements that E.L.K. currently has with Hydro One for other customers.

The first arrangement has been named pseudo LTL arrangements, which is the same arrangements E.L.K. has with Hydro One for the current Hydro One customers located right next to the Sellick property.  If you’ll recall, that is that map we had up with the eight customers in red and Sellick is right beside it.

MS. SPOEL:  So this would be the customers in red you’re referring to?

MR. BACON:  Yes.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Similar to the customers --


MR. BACON:  Yes, similar.  See that?

MS. CHRISTIE:  Yes.

MR. BACON:  Okay.  So Mr. Danelon discussed the pseudo LTL arrangements, and that was helpful.  But I also have my thought to maybe help.

It is my understanding the pseudo LTL arrangement is settled in the same manner that other LTL customers are settled across the province.  But in this case, Hydro One physically delivers the power and physically bills them, okay.

Since E.L.K. does not physically deliver the power, it is not classified as a LTL customer.  But since E.L.K. would be the wholesale market participant for this customer -- which I will talk about a little later -- it is a LTL settlement process.  They settle the same way as a LTL, but it is just not -- it is not a LTL because Hydro One physically owns the line and actually does the billing for the customer, and that is the difference.

Now, in this case, E.L.K. would charge Hydro One $47,309.15 a month.  They would charge that to Hydro One if this is the situation that we decided that -- that it was decided how it would be handled if Sellick was a customer of Hydro One and E.L.K. would have to charge Hydro One under the pseudo LTL arrangement.

MS. SPOEL:  So can I just stop you there for a second?

MR. BACON:  Yes, please.

MS. SPOEL:  So what would happen is that if Sellick were a Hydro One customer, Sellick would pay Hydro One the 50,000 --


MR. BACON:  That's correct.

MS. SPOEL:  -- $104 that's in block 2.  Then Hydro One -- that's what Sellick would pay to Hydro One.

MR. BACON:  Hmm-hmm.

MS. SPOEL:  Then E.L.K. would send a bill to Hydro One as well?

MR. BACON:  That's right.

MS. SPOEL:  For 47,000 and some --


MR. BACON:  $309.15.

MS. SPOEL:  And who would pay the -- so Hydro One would pay that bill --


MR. BACON:  Hydro One would pay --


MS. SPOEL:  -- so the net that Hydro One would be left with would be some bit less than $3,000?

MR. BACON:  Right.

MS. SPOEL:  So of the 50,000 they receive from Sellick they would then reimburse -- they would pay 47,000 and some of that back to E.L.K.?

MR. BACON:  Right.

MR. VELLONE:  There is another step to this process that Mr. Bacon will speak to, so the --


MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  Fine.  I just -- as we go along --


MR. BACON:  We are getting there --


MS. SPOEL:  I just want to understand the --


MR. BACON:  -- the questions are good because you need to understand, and as we go along --


MS. SPOEL:  I need to understand the steps.  Okay.  Yeah.

MR. BACON:  Okay?  Those are very -- so thank you, that helps me with my stuff.

So, okay.  All right.  So that is the first arrangement.  That is the first possible arrangement.

There is a second possible arrangement with -- in the same situation, which we called -- titled "E.L.K. charges to Hydro One using embedded distributor rates".  E.L.K. would charge Hydro One using the embedded distributor rate structure.

In this case, a new retail meter would be installed to read the Sellick load and E.L.K. would use the readings of this meter to charge Hydro One for Sellick.

This amount would be $48,577.25.  Previously it was thought that this would be the method used by E.L.K. to charge Hydro One for Sellick, assuming Sellick is a Hydro One customer.  However, in the preparation for the hearing, it has become clear that E.L.K. may in fact be charging Hydro One using the pseudo LTL arrangement, and the key determination is whether Hydro One elects to install a new retail meter or not, which would attract the embedded distributor rate, or Hydro One does not install it, which would attract the pseudo LTL treatment, which is the same arrangement E.L.K. has with the Hydro One customers in the same area that Sellick has right now.  Okay.

So just to be clear, these two lot blocks that we've just looked at are two possible ways that E.L.K. would charge Hydro One.  And it all rests on whether you put a retail meter in or not.

MS. CHRISTIE:  And the customer would still be paying, under table 4 -- or your 4 case, would still be paying $50,000 to HONI?

MR. BACON:  That's right.  50,104.71 to HONI, in both of these situations.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Okay.

MR. BACON:  Okay?  We're getting there.  All right.

So now continuing on with the table.  The second-last block of data shows the amount Hydro One will charge E.L.K. for Sellick under the sub-transmission structure.  This monthly amount is $10,380.67, which is about the 125,000 annually that we have referred to in response to HONI 1, second round, part (b).

Hydro One will charge E.L.K. this amount, whether -- now, the important thing, Hydro One will charge E.L.K. this amount whether Sellick is a customer of Hydro One or a customer of E.L.K.

The last box -- and this is -- to be honest with you, this is when the light came on for me.  The last block of data shows the amount of IESO charges, E.L.K. for Sellick, since E.L.K., is a market participant for Sellick.

E.L.K., is designated as a wholesale market participant at the Harrow North PME, and because of this designation E.L.K. is charged both ST charges by HONI, as well as commodity and regulatory charges by the IESO.

So the monthly IESO amount is $38,033.33.  And the IESO will charge E.L.K. this amount whether they're an E.L.K. -- whether Sellick is an E.L.K. customer or a Hydro One customer.  Okay?

This means E.L.K. will be charged -- no.  Go back.  Scroll down there.  Okay.  This means E.L.K. will be charged $10,380.67 by Hydro One and $38,033.33 by the IESO, for a total of 48,000, which is kind of shown there, $48,414, whether Sellick is an E.L.K. or a Hydro One customer.

MS. SPOEL:  That is the monthly --


MR. BACON:  That is the monthly amount.

So that is how much E.L.K. will be charged by Hydro One or the -- and the IESO whether Sellick is a customer of E.L.K. or Hydro One.

MS. CHRISTIE:  So then that would apply to both your case number 1 or your case number 2?

MR. BACON:  That's right.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Okay.

MR. BACON:  Are we good?

MS. CHRISTIE:  So far.

MR. BACON:  So far.  Okay.  Now, I kind of have to get into something for two or three minutes that I've got to -- well, anyway, I need to draw you to something to think about.

Now, before I draw some conclusions about all of this, which there are at the end of all of this, I would like to turn to E.L.K. response HONI, second round, part (b).

These tables I put together really helped me understand what's going on.  And it actually helped me understand that we probably could have done a better job of answering this interrogatory.

These helped me to see something more clearly.  The response to the stated -- Sellick will pay $343.90 per year of the 22,000 mentioned in the response.  As outlined in that response, the $343.90 represents the change in LV rates times the Sellick volume.

The change in LV rates was determined by putting the 22,000 through the cost allocation and rate design model for LV charges.

However, what we missed was Sellick would be paying the LV rate before it was changed on all of the volumes.  So in actual fact this means of the 22,000, Sellick would be paying the total rate of .455 times the Sellick volume, and if we go back to the tables under the E.L.K. case, that will be the $546.60 per month, and this would be -- and if you multiply that by -- sorry, this would be the LV charges that Sellick would pay on a monthly basis.

And then if we look at the transmission charges which, we don't need to go back to it, but a reference in that response interrogatory of 89,000, stated in that response, Sellick would be paying $2,850.64 -- that's the transmission network service amount -- as well as the $1,940.67 for the line connection, for the transmission component.  And in total that is $4,791.11 per month.

Now, however, when we talked about this one -- there is 125,000 referenced in the response.  This represents the total Hydro One delivery charges to E.L.K. under the sub-transmission rate structure.

When we reviewed the charges from E.L.K. to Hydro One under the embedded rate structure, the total delivery charges were 126,495.  I realize that is just a number I gave out.  If you want to actually refer to that, it is in the table that's been corrected, and it is at the bottom over to the side there.

So we are talking delivery charges.  That is what I want to try and focus on.  In the table we're talking total charges, which I want to come to a conclusion at the end.

But for the purposes of this interrogatory, I think we're talking delivery charges.

So to hopefully maintain some level of consistency with the comparison, the total delivery charges to Sellick, assuming Sellick is a customer of E.L.K., should be reviewed, compared to the 125,000 of delivery charges.

This means that the delivery charges should also include the costs associated with the monthly delivery charges of $187 shown there, plus E.L.K. rate rider disposition of deferral and variance accounts of negative $2,427.60, plus E.L.K. rate rider disposition of $3,014.76, plus the distribution volumetric of $1,899.24, along with the LV charges.  When you add it all up, it is $96,136.56 without HST, and $108,634.17 with HST.

Now, the whole purpose of this -- this means, in my understanding now, of the $125,000 of delivery charges from Hydro One, $108,634.17 is being charged to Sellick if Sellick is a E.L.K. customer.  I want to make that clear -- and I suppose it is not that clear.

MS. SPOEL:  Can you try that again?  Of the amount charged, E.L.K. would be charging $108,000 annually, I presume, as a distribution -- as a delivery charge to E.L.K.?

MR. BACON:  Yes.  So let me --


MS. SPOEL:  How does that relate to the 125 or 126,000?

MR. BACON:  Here is what my understanding of it is.  $125,000 is what Hydro One is going to charge E.L.K. for delivery.

MS. SPOEL:  Oh, and then E.L.K. is, in turn, charging $108,000 of that --


MR. BACON:  Oh, no, no.  In turn, E.L.K. is going to -- if they're going to charge Hydro One, if -- okay.

If Hydro One -- if Sellick is a Hydro One customer?  I will do that one first.

MS. SPOEL:  Can you just run through -- if Sellick is a E.L.K. customer --


MR. BACON:  Okay.

MS. SPOEL:  Can you run through the two scenarios?  If Sellick is a E.L.K. customer, and setting aside this business about whether they're charged as a pseudo LT – I mean, the amounts 47,000 versus 48,000 based on the two methods of charging are not that different.

MR. BACON:  No.

MS. SPOEL:  So let's just take $48,000 as an average of the two.  So in this scenario where E.L.K. -- where Sellick is a E.L.K. customer, who pays what to who?  Does Sellick pay to E.L.K.?  What does E.L.K. pay to Hydro One?  What does Hydro One pay to E.L.K.?

I think those are the three -- or I guess there is the IESO as well.  But can you just run through, you know, who pays what -- monthly or annually, I don't care.  But who pays what if they're an E.L.K. customer, and then who pays what if they're a Hydro One customer, because that is, I think, where we're confused.

MR. BACON:  I have to do something I am not supposed to do.  I have to ask you a question.

MS. SPOEL:  You can do that.

MR. BACON:  Do you want it on a delivery basis component, or on the total basis?  In my view, the total makes sense, but I was trying to handle --


MS. SPOEL:  The total.  Let's just talk about total.   What is the total?  Let's keep it as simple as we possibly can.  Let's just have a total, you know, X pays this to Y, who pays this to Z, who pays it back to Y, or whatever, just so we -- because I don't understand.  There’s too many numbers here.

MR. BACON:  Okay.  Let's look at the situation where Sellick is an E.L.K. customer.

MS. SPOEL:  Right.

MR. BACON:  Okay?  So in total, E.L.K. will be charged $48,414.00 -- Erin, if we can just go down to there.  Yes, see that $48,440 will be charged to -- E.L.K. will be charged that in total by Hydro One and the IESO.  Okay?

MS. SPOEL:  E.L.K. pays Hydro One, and that is for the commodity and the sub transmission and all of that stuff?

MR. BACON:  Yes, exactly.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay, fine.

MR. BACON:  That's what they have to pay for, and then  they're going to charge Sellick $49,165.22.

MS. CHRISTIE:  That is E.L.K. is charging Sellick?

MR. BACON:  Right.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Yes.

MR. BACON:  We're good?

MS. SPOEL:  We're good so far.

MR. BACON:  Now it gets a little complicated.  I will stick with the pseudo LTL analysis.

Now, if Sellick is a Hydro One customer, E.L.K. will be charged and now matter -- will be still charged the $48,414.00 by Hydro One and the IESO.

MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, but -- so getting back to the first scenario, if Sellick is a E.L.K. customer, there are only those two transactions.  E.L.K. pays a total of $48,414.

MR. BACON:  Yes.

MS. SPOEL:  And E.L.K. charges Sellick $49,165.

MR. BACON:  Yes.

MS. SPOEL:  Those are the only transactions that happen?

MR. BACON:  That's the only transactions.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay, fine.  Correct.  Moving on to the next scenario.

MR. BACON:  Now, if Hydro One is the -- if Sellick is -- sorry.  If Sellick is a Hydro One customer,  E.L.K. will still be charged that $48,414 by Hydro One and the IESO.  They’re going to be charged that amount.

MS. SPOEL:   Right.

MR. BACON:  And then E.L.K. in turn will charge Hydro One -- and we're going to use a pseudo LTL analysis.  They in turn will charge Hydro One $47,309.15.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay.

MR. BACON:  Then Hydro One will charge Sellick $50,104.71.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Sorry, they're charging Sellick that?

MR. BACON:  Yes.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Okay.

MS. CHRISTIE:  That's it?

MR. BACON:  That's it.  I'm okay?

MS. SPOEL:  Yes, thank you.

MR. BACON:  I have one more thing to say.  In summary, obviously this is all very confusing, okay.  Well, it is.  And hopefully this has helped us understand it somewhat.

But when you look at it all, the components of the bill in total, Sellick will pay the costs of providing service in all cases.

I want to repeat that.  When you consider all of the components of the bill, the calculations are complicated. But in total, Sellick will pay its costs of service in both cases.  And those are my comments.

MS. SPOEL:  Right, okay.  Thank you.

MR. VELLONE:  That's the conclusion of our in-chief.  The witnesses are available for cross.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  Mr. Engelberg, I assume you are going first?  Have you discussed with Mr. Lanni?

MR. ENGELBERG:  We didn't have a discussion.  I am in Mr. Lanni's hands.

MR. LANNI:  Do you have any idea how long you will need and whether you will need a break?

MS. SPOEL:  We will deal -- see how it goes.  We will sort of be in charge of when it is appropriate to have a break.  Thank you.
Cross-Examination by Mr. Engelberg:

MR. ENGELBERG:  I think because we have just heard the evidence on rates, we will deal with that first, rather than the order in which Mr. Vellone went regarding the pole.  I think that might be helpful to the Board.

Would the Panel, please, turn to E.L.K.'s original pre-filed evidence dated April 12th, 2016, which was updated on April 26th, and I would like specifically for you to turn to section 7.1.1 (c).

I would like to ask you, in light of revised numbers that E.L.K. has provided during the course of the hearing and before, how many customers does E.L.K. now believe will be impacted by this application?

MR. DANELON:  Based on what Mr. Bacon had recently concluded, is that E.L.K. -- sorry, is that Sellick is essentially paying for the power that it is using.  So it's my belief that Sellick Equipment is the customer.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, I didn't understand that.  Are you saying that Sellick is the only customer impacted by this application?

MR. DANELON:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Are you suggesting that every dollar of the Sellick bill will be used to offset the incremental charges?

MR. DANELON:  I think what Mr. Bacon is trying to conclude is that the numbers are very close, as we just presented.  And that Sellick is essentially paying for itself.  We're not burdening our other customers.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So your evidence is that no other customer of E.L.K. will be affected in any way by the connection of Sellick to the E.L.K. system if E.L.K. is successful in this application?

MR. BACON:  I think what we're saying is that the amount that it's going to cost us is equal to the amount we are going to -- and more is what we're going to charge Sellick.

Now, if you want to get into a cost allocation of where it is all going to go and the various places, that's going to take some time, and -- but we're trying to keep this as simple as possible to say there are certain costs that are coming into the system and Sellick is going to pay those costs, essentially.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So essentially -- I don't want to take you through the whole cost allocation system, but there will be an impact on low voltage rates, will there not?

MR. BACON:  Yes, there will be.  And -- yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So would that not affect other customers of E.L.K.?

MR. BACON:  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  In what way?

MR. BACON:  There --


MR. ENGELBERG:  Would they pay more or would they pay less?

MR. BACON:  The LV charges generally will go up, yes, they will go up for all customers.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So does that not mean that other customers of E.L.K. would pay more if E.L.K. is successful in this application and gets the right to connect Sellick?

MR. BACON:  On the LV side, yes.  But it may not necessarily be on the distribution side.

So what I am getting at is you can say one component, yes, may go up.  The other components may -- the incremental revenue on other components might be used to offset that increase.

MR. ENGELBERG:  But you can't tell us for sure whether it would be offset by the other factors, can you?

MR. BACON:  I can tell you by my analysis that I've put together and shown you that in total the costs are going to be covered by E.L.K.

MR. ENGELBERG:  How about the RTSR rates?

MR. BACON:  The RTSR rates, yes.  We don't believe that they're going to move much at all as a result of bringing the additional transmission charges from Hydro One into the RTSR model.

MS. SPOEL:  I'm sorry, RTSR is...?


MR. BACON:  Retail transmission service rates, sorry.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  Just, it is helpful to minimize the use of acronyms if we can.

MR. ENGELBERG:  If they do move you say you're not sure whether they will move at all, but if they do move would they go up?

MR. BACON:  I don't think they're going to move at all, because reason being is that the volume that we're adding -- okay.  You have to recognize that you have to send this through a rate design model.  You put the costs in.  You put the volumes in.  And the volumes and the rate and the associated costs for the transmission charges are pretty small compared to the total transmission costs that E.L.K. pays.

So they might be -- there might be a small change, but it's going to be immaterial.

MR. ENGELBERG:  All right.  Thank you.  My next question is probably for the other members of the panel to answer.

I take it from what your evidence-in-chief has said and what Mr. Bacon has said today that you do agree that when the Board considers this matter, the Board doesn't just look at the economic efficiency for one customer, but it needs to look at the effect on all the customers of the local utility?

MR. DANELON:  Yes, yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Now, some of the questions have been dealt with in direct examination, but I would like to turn to the matter of low voltage service rates.

Can you, please, turn to E.L.K.'s interrogatory response dated September 8th, and particularly the response to Board Staff interrogatory 6(iii).

Do you have that in front of you now?

MR. BACON:  It is on the screen, right?

MR. ENGELBERG:  E.L.K. responded that LV service rates charged by E.L.K. to all E.L.K. customers are not applicable.

Does E.L.K. still say today that LV rates and the resulting impact to these rates are not applicable?

MR. BACON:  I think we just answered that there is going to be a change in LV charges.  So I guess it's going to be applicable.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay.

MR. DANELON:  I think the important part is that in total that is just one component.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Can you turn to page 16 of the E.L.K. reply submission.  And I understand from what we've heard today that E.L.K.'s submission on the fully loaded connection costs of both LDCs has changed.  Is that correct?  Because it's been updated by your compendium that you filed earlier this week?

MR. DANELON:  What components are you referencing that has changed?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, I am asking whether anything has changed.  And then, just to be fair, I am going to tell you that my next question is going to be, why did anything that changed, change?

MR. VELLONE:  Just to seek clarity, when you first asked the question, you asked about, was there a change to the fully loaded connection costs?  Was that your intent to ask that?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes.  Has there been a change, today, or earlier this week, to the fully loaded connection costs, as compared to what was on page 16 of the E.L.K. reply submission?

MR. DANELON:  I guess the only change that I see is Hydro One has included the pole relocation cost in the E.L.K. column.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, I wasn't talking about a change in what Hydro One submitted.  I was talking about what E.L.K. submitted.  Is it consistent with what was filed on page 16 of the E.L.K. reply submission?  Or have there been any changes?

MR. VELLONE:  Can I take a shot at clarifying this?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes --


MR. VELLONE:  The $8,702.67, did that change?

MR. DANELON:  No, that didn't change.

MR. VELLONE:  Is that what you're asking?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay, thank you.

For information purposes, I notice that E.L.K. included the materiality threshold in the table, and it is stated to be $50,000 for E.L.K.

Can you tell us what the significance of that materiality threshold is?

MR. BACON:  That's a materiality threshold for specifically cost-of-service rate applications.  It is 50,000 for them, according to the materiality definition.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And that is related, I suppose, to the size and volume of E.L.K.'s business?

MR. BACON:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  If I may just have one minute?

MS. SPOEL:  Yes, certainly.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  What happens if the cost exceeds the materiality threshold of 50,000 for E.L.K.?

MR. BACON:  In a cost-of-service rate application, that's the level of materiality or the threshold in which you have to explain a variance or an increase, or -- that is used for that purpose.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Is it used for any other purpose?

MR. BACON:  Not to my knowledge, no.

MR. ENGELBERG:  If the Board finds, as a result of this hearing, that the costs impact to other ratepayers is $50,000 or more, would that, then, be something that would be paid for by other customers of E.L.K.?

MR. BACON:  Under that assumption, that would be the case, yes.  There's $50,000, but I must -- I want to say that that is pretty unrealistic, I would say, because based on my analysis, it looks like -- I will go back and say it looks like Sellick is going to pay for the full costs.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I understand that that was your evidence.

MR. BACON:  Oh, okay.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Can you confirm now that E.L.K. is submitting that the pole relocation costs should be utilized by the Board in assessing the economic efficiency of E.L.K.'s costs when assessing the two competing offers to connect?

MR. MACAULAY:  No.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Sorry?

MR. MACAULAY:  No.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And why is that?

MR. MACAULAY:  The cost doesn’t create the efficiency.  The fact that the pole is there -- is existing creates the efficiency.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay, thank you.  But it is on the E.L.K. chart, which is why I was asking about it.  Why is it on the chart, if it shouldn't be utilized by the Board?

MR. DANELON:  That cost of pole relocation that you are seeing on the screen is not the one that I presented.

I guess that is what I was trying to clarify.  We took that out because of Mr. Macaulay's suggestion.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay, thank you.  I would like to turn now to the compendium that Hydro One filed earlier this week.

My understanding is that Hydro One realized that tab 1 of the E.L.K. compendium is very similar to tab 1 of the Hydro One compendium, particularly to lines 15 to 24 of table 3, at tab 2 of the Hydro One compendium.

There are some minor differences, but would you agree that the two tables are very similar?

MR. VELLONE:  Sorry, there’s a number of tables at tab 2.  Which one are you referring to?

MR. ENGELBERG:  I am referring to table 3, lines 15 to 24.

MR. BACON:  Can you repeat the question, please?

MR. ENGELBERG:  All right.  Tab 1 of the E.L.K. compendium is very similar to the chart at this particular tab.  There are only some minor differences.

MR. BACON:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Can you tell us what drives those small differences?

MR. BACON:  Okay.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I just want to be sure that a different methodology was not used, and that --


MR. BACON:  The main difference is the low voltage service rate.  The Hydro One compendium shows a rate of 4332 and we have used the rate of 4555, which reflects sending the costs associated with low voltage through the low voltage cost allocation model and rate design.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So in effect, you have used different rates to arrive at that?  It is not because of --


MR. BACON:  That’s the --

MR. ENGELBERG:  -- rounding, or the fact that perhaps Hydro One used four digits and E.L.K. used more than four digits?

MR. BACON:  Well, it is pretty clear if you actually go through it.  It pops out pretty clearly; that's the only difference.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay, thank you.

I think we can agree, but I would like you to confirm it.  I think you can agree for now that Hydro One and E.L.K. agreed on the level of costs that would be levied by E.L.K. to Hydro One under E.L.K.'s 2016 embedded distributor rate.  Is that correct?

MR. BACON:  That's correct.  If you are referring to the rates that are in our tab 1, the compendium and yours, they're the same rates, except for the low voltage charge.

MR. ENGELBERG:  All right.  And that would be the amount of approximately $126,000 a year under the scenario of 100 percent load?

MR. BACON:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Could I ask you to look now at tab 3 of the Hydro One compendium?  And for the record, that's E.L.K.'s response to Hydro One interrogatory 1, dated November 10th.

Are we there?

MR. BACON:  We're there.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  Can E.L.K. describe all of the annual incremental charges that would be charged to E.L.K.'s other customers, if E.L.K. serves Sellick?

If you’d like, you can break it down into what headings the charges would be, and then what amounts the charges would be to the other customers.

MR. BACON:  I don't know the answer to that question.

MR. ENGELBERG:  But you are saying that there would be no subsidy at all that would be paid by the other E.L.K. customers?

MR. BACON:  The only one -- back to the LV charges, that's the only one we actually sent through the cost allocation rate design for that.

So on that one specifically, there is an increase in the rate associated with the costs that go in to that particular component.

But I am going to try and come back to the total again.  On a total basis, Sellick pays the costs that E.L.K. is incurring.  So, yes, I will stop right there.

MR. ENGELBERG:  You mentioned earlier -- or one of your co-panel members mentioned earlier -- the rate of $22,000 annually.  Isn't that -- am I correct in saying that you said that would be something that would be paid by E.L.K.'s other ratepayers?

MR. BACON:  Well, that's the additional amount that goes into the LV cost allocation rate design.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And would that be paid by the other ratepayers?

MR. BACON:  Let me try to answer the question for you.

According to my chief -- oh, yes.  Of the $22,000 -– thanks, Ms. Peters.

If we go to the E.L.K. block there, the low voltage amount will be 546.60 per month times 12, whatever that is.  That's how much of the $22,000 Sellick would pay, and the rest would be paid by the other customers.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay, thank you for that.  Now, would you turn to table 2 of the Hydro One compendium?

My understanding is that E.L.K. agrees with the costs outlined in that table.

MR. BACON:  Yes, we do.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Can you confirm that E.L.K. agrees that there would be only an approximate $1,006 recovery from customers required by Hydro One if Sellick were to connect to Hydro One?

MR. BACON:  Can you tell me how you determined that number?

MR. ENGELBERG:  I'm sorry.  I meant to refer to table 1, not table 2.  You see an amount there of 1,000 -- let me see.  Where is it?  Yes, $1,594.80, in the bottom right-hand corner.

MR. BACON:  I see that.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Do you agree with that number?

MR. BACON:  No, I do not agree with that at all.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Can you tell us why you do not agree with that?

MR. BACON:  Because it is back to, how does the money move?  And this is why, Ms. Spoel, when you asked me, did you want me to -- I asked, do you want me to talk about delivery or total.  And I gave it to you on a total basis, okay?

Now I am going to give it to you on a delivery basis, which is how I believe the money moves on a delivery basis.

So if Sellick is an E.L.K. customer, E.L.K. will charge -- will be charged the 124,500 and -- we have 68, yours is 64.  Let's -- we'll call $124,568.05 by Hydro One, and E.L.K. will, in turn, charge Sellick 108,634.17 on an annual basis for delivery.  Okay?

MS. CHRISTIE:  Sorry, can you repeat that last piece?

MR. BACON:  If Sellick is an E.L.K. customer, E.L.K. will be charged 124 -- and I -- just so we have the same number -- 124,564.66 by Hydro One.  Okay?

However, so we're talking in the situation where Sellick is an E.L.K. customer.  E.L.K. will, in turn, charge Sellick 108,634.17 for delivery.  So I guess on a delivery side, yes, there will be a little bit -- which is immaterial, which other customers will pick up.

However, now, if E.L.K. is a Hydro One customer -- sorry.  If Sellick is a Hydro One customer, E.L.K. will charge $124,568.05 by Hydro One, as before.

E.L.K. will most likely charge Hydro One 106,747.03 for delivery, and we can go back to the tables and figure that out.  Then Hydro One, in turn, will charge Sellick $134,450.24 for delivery.

It is the movement of dollars from party to party.  I don't think you can subtract one from the other and come up and say it is $1,594.80.  I don't believe that is correct.  It is a movement of money.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, can we say then that you're looking at offsetting revenue and not just incremental costs?

MR. BACON:  No.  I think what we're doing is we're following the money.  And you are charged a certain amount, and that gets charged to another party.  That is not the end-use party.  Then that party takes it to the next party.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, instead of just following the money, can you tell us what the incremental costs would be?  If I ask you specifically to look at that?

MR. BACON:  The incremental costs would be?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes.

MR. BACON:  To who?

MR. ENGELBERG:  To Hydro One ratepayers, if Hydro One is to serve Sellick, and to E.L.K. ratepayers, if E.L.K. is to serve Sellick.

MR. BACON:  I would say on a total basis there is no incremental costs, because Sellick is paying -- when we look at the total analysis, Sellick is paying, in total, what the costs are.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay.  When you say there is no incremental costs as you did just now, you are referring only to E.L.K. ratepayers?  Or also to Hydro One ratepayers?  If Hydro One is to serve, as opposed to having E.L.K. serve Sellick.

MR. BACON:  Well, in both cases Sellick pays more than the costs, in total.  So in my interpretation, that would be that Sellick is paying for the costs.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

Now, will this picture change based on the 2017 distribution rate application of --


MR. BACON:  We haven't looked at it under that assumption.  We try to keep things -- in this confusing story, we try to keep things as simple as possible.  We did not bring '17 into it.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  I would like to see for a moment if one of my questions has been answered.

I would like to look, briefly, at one part of the recently-filed cost-of-service application with the next question.  So we have copies here for everyone.

[Mr. Catalano passes out document.]


MR. ENGELBERG:  Perhaps we could mark that as an exhibit.

MR. VELLONE:  So for clarity, this was not included in your compendium that you circulated in advance?

MR. ENGELBERG:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  So this will be the first time my witnesses --


MR. ENGELBERG:  It wasn't available then.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.

MS. SPOEL:  Can we mark this as an exhibit?

MR. LANNI:  We will mark this as Exhibit K1.4.
EXHIBIT NO. K1.4:  ONE PART OF THE RECENTLY-FILED COST-OF-SERVICE APPLICATION.

MR. VELLONE:  Before we introduce it, can I take a look, please?

MR. LANNI:  Would you have an extended break or just a moment?

MR. VELLONE:  Just a moment.

MS. SPOEL:  Well, maybe we could take a break now so it gives Mr. Vellone and the witnesses a chance to have a look at this.  And also, I'm -- we will see where it goes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  This is a cost-of-service application.

MS. SPOEL:  Right.  No, I understand this is an excerpt from E.L.K.'s most recent cost-of-service application which has not yet been the subject of review or decision by the Board, so it's --


MR. ENGELBERG:  That's correct.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  I just wanted to make sure we understand what the thing is.  But let's a ten-minute -- or let's take a 15-minute morning break now.  That will give everybody a chance to have a look at it, and we can come back at quarter past 11:00.
--- Recess taken at 11:01 a.m.
--- On resuming at 11:20 a.m.

MS. SPOEL:  Please be seated.  Okay, Mr. Engelberg.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  Just before the break, we made, as I understand it, Exhibit K1.4 as an excerpt from the cost of service application for 2017.

After the Board left the room, I gave one more proposed exhibit to the witnesses and to Mr. Vellone, which is appendix 2A to the E.L.K. cost of service application, which is the E.L.K. distribution system plan filed with that application.

I would like make that -- we can make it either Exhibit K1.5 or part of Exhibit K1.4.

MS. SPOEL:  Let's make it K1.5 as a separate document.
EXHIBIT NO. K1.5:  APPENDIX 2A TO THE E.L.K. COST OF SERVICE APPLICATION

MR. ENGELBERG:  I would like to ask the panel, have you had a chance to look at the two excerpts from the 2017 E.L.K. cost of service application?

MR. BACON:  Yes, we have.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Can you confirm that Hydro One is the only customer that E.L.K. bills under E.L.K.'s embedded distributor rate class?

MR. DANELON:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And I would like to look at table 7-9 in your cost of service application.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Can you give us a page for that, please?

MR. ENGELBERG:  At page 7 of 8 -- 7 of 9, excuse me.  Can you confirm that the only costs directly allocated to the embedded distributor class are metering and billing?

MR. BACON:  In the 2017 rate application, that's right.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes:   Perhaps it might be better to call it a settlement class rather than an embedded distributor class to avoid ambiguity.  Would that be okay with you?

MR. BACON:  No.  It is a class, it is a rate class, it’s an embedded distributor class.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Does it depend on the party being charged the amount being an embedded distributor?  Is that what determines it?

MR. BACON:  I think it is determined base on the rate order, is my understanding of it.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Would you say it is not determined on the basis of the services that are provided for and charged under that class?

MR. BACON:  My understanding of a definition of a class is it’s defined in the rate order and whatever the definition of the rate -- whatever the definition of the class is in the rate order is how that rate class is defined.

MR. ENGELBERG:  All right.  We will leave that now; that will be spoken to by the Hydro One panel.

Could you also confirm that in tables 7-7 and 7-8 of the same exhibit, that E.L.K. confirms that it is over-collecting from the E.L.K. embedded distributor rate class, and that E.L.K. will be collecting only 58,476.00 from that class in 2017?

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg, this is an application that has not yet been approved by the Board, nor has there been a hearing on it.  I am not sure that you can put to the witness that this was what they will be collecting.  This is a proposal that has been filed by the Board that is only that at this stage.

So I am not sure you can expect these witnesses to --


MR. ENGELBERG:  That's quite correct, Madam Chair, and I shouldn't be putting it as will be collecting.  What it is being introduced for here is to show what services are being provided and what charges are proposed to be made.  Not -- not to be treated as something that will necessarily happen, but certainly the categories of services that will be provided and what those services are for will be relevant to the background of what the Hydro One witnesses will speak to.

I am not asking for any conclusions to be drawn today on what the actual dollar amounts are.

MS. SPOEL:  All right.  Well, I think you have to be careful as to how far we go with this, given it is not -- it's not been tested or examined.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  So I will ask my last question on that.

If these rates are approved in 2017, what additional costs would E.L.K. levy on Hydro One?

MR. BACON:  Well, according to the proposal --


MR. ENGLEBERG:  Excuse me, if Hydro One serves Sellick.

MR. BACON:  I can't answer that question, because Sellick is not put into this. Sellick has not been put into the 2017 rate application, so it is difficult to answer that question.

MR. ENGELBERG:  But there is a category of charges that E.L.K. is asking for in the cost-of-service application.

Again, I am not asking for dollars.  But what services would E.L.K. be providing that E.L.K. would charge for if Sellick is added as a customer?

MR. BACON:  Well, consistent with the rate application, it is a proposal.  I will pick up on Ms. Spoel's comment.  It is a proposal how we would charge Hydro One in this rate application.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  Would it be a fixed service charge?

MR. BACON:  That's what we said, yes, it would be; that's what the proposal is.

But I would like to make it clear.  This is a proposal and it has to go through testing.  It has to go through testing with other intervenors and other parties and through that process, they may not agree to this proposal.  So we don't know.

MR. ENGELBERG:  What are the alternatives to having it be a fixed service charge?  Are there any?  Or are we referring to -- when you say it would have to be vetted by intervenors, are you referring to dollar amounts that might differ as a result of intervenors’ evidence, or are you referring to categories of rates?

MR. BACON:  I'm referring to the fact that this proposal here is a direct -- it's a direct allocation method on particular costs that we believe are for Hydro One.

But for instance, the intervenors representing the residential class may not think this is appropriate, because that means we've taken costs from Hydro One and put them on the residential class.

MR. ENGELBERG:  All right.

MR. BACON:  And that -- so I don't know where it is going to end up.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, that's helpful.  I want to change to another topic now, and that is the issue of the LTL matter that has been brought up by the panel.

I would like to refer you to the cost of service application portion that is Exhibit K1.5, which is the distribution system plan.

On page 83 of that exhibit, which is the third page -- does everyone have it? -- E.L.K. states that E.L.K. has no embedded distributors.  Is that correct?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct, in the context of what this is speaking to.

This is speaking specifically to the renewable energy portion.  The feeders that come through E.L.K.'s service area are Hydro One's feeders.  Hydro One controls -- Hydro One controls the magnitude of general ration that is capable on those feeders.

So that being said, inside the REG format, sorry the renewable generation format, E.L.K. does not dictate   constraints to the embedded distributor, being Hydro One our embedded distributor on a billing platform, as we don't control the feeder going out of our system.

Hydro One controls capacity or the renewable generation that is allowed to connect to that feeder.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Are the customers we're talking about here today all connected to the -- or going to be connected to the Hydro One M7 feeder?

MR. MACAULAY:  I'm sorry, which customers?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, the customers in the map that was filed earlier, the blow-up map.

MR. MACAULAY:  The customers one through nine?  Those customers are all connected to the M7 feeder.

MR. ENGELBERG:  All right.  Now, would those be the customers not only where Sellick would be connected, but to the north of the Sellick property?

MR. MACAULAY:  Are you referring to the customers that are numbered in the red zones?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes.

MR. MACAULAY:  Okay.  Your question is?

MR. ENGELBERG:  My question is are those connected to Hydro One assets?

MR. MACAULAY:  They receive -- yes, they receive service from the M7 feeder that is owned by Hydro One.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, they not only receive service from it.  They're connected to that, right?

MR. MACAULAY:  Correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  How about the customers to the west of the Sellick property?  Are they also connected, being served by Hydro One?

MR. MACAULAY:  The customers that aren't shaded?  I'm sorry, I am trying to pick up which customers you're pertaining to.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, I'm referring, in a nutshell, to all the customers surrounding the little indentation that is made by the Sellick property to the west of Roseborough Road.  Customers to the north, to the west, and the south.  They're all Hydro One customers?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.  We identify that in our filing on the -- in our original filing.  We identified it is Hydro One's service area.

MR. ENGELBERG:  They're all being served by Hydro One.

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  By Hydro One assets.

MR. MACAULAY:  They're connected to the M7 feeder; that's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Who do they call if there is an outage, if --


MR. MACAULAY:  Hydro One.  They're Hydro One customers.  Again, we have never made a statement that they weren't.  We have identified it as Hydro One --


MR. ENGELBERG:  I am not saying you did.  But I just wanted to clarify that.  And is it also fair to say that the boundary line between the two LDCs right now, in this area that we're concerned with, is on the north-south road called Roseborough?

MR. MACAULAY:  That is correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And it is Hydro One to the west and E.L.K. to the east?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So would you agree that is a smooth boundary between the two LDCs?

MR. MACAULAY:  It is a straight line, yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  If E.L.K. is successful in this application, the line would no longer be smooth, right, it would be bumpy?

MR. MACAULAY:  There would be a dent, yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  A dent in the Hydro One service territory?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

Have you seen and reviewed the Hydro One offers to connect in this proceeding?

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I think I know that you are going to agree with me on this, but if Hydro One serves Sellick, would Hydro One need to use any E.L.K. assets?

MR. MACAULAY:  No.

MR. ENGELBERG:  If there's an outage on the M7 feeder that serves all the customers that we have spoken about, is it Hydro One that would take care of restoring power?  Or would it be E.L.K.?

MR. MACAULAY:  It would be Hydro One.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg, I think, we indicated at the beginning that issues about service reliability and quality, the Board accepts that there is no particular issue on those --


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I am not getting to the service reliability and quality.  The point is that the E.L.K. witnesses have spoken about something that Hydro One has never heard of before, which is called a pseudo LTLT, and that refers to who serves, who connects, who fixes, when the power goes down.

We're going to be hearing from the Hydro One witnesses that there is no such thing as a pseudo LTLT, and that there are no LTLTs or LTLT results that would come from this application.

MS. SPOEL:  All right.  Thank you.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  Looking again at section 7.1.1(f) of the pre-filed evidence of E.L.K. -- let me know when you have that available.

Can you explain how this is an LTLT situation, if Hydro One is going to be serving the customer by connecting the customer to a Hydro One pole and a Hydro One line and a Hydro One feeder inside Hydro One's service territory?

MR. VELLONE:  May I just briefly interject?  What is showing on the screen is the April 12th, 2016 version of the application.  That was subsequently amended on June 21st, 2016, and actually this response was amended.

So I am hoping we could actually have the proper version up on the screen in front of us just before the witnesses --


MR. ENGELBERG:  I'm sorry.  Certainly we should deal with the proper version.

MR. VELLONE:  Apologies.  Thank you.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So is it fair then, from the amended wording, that E.L.K. is not suggesting that this is an LTLT situation, if Hydro One were to connect Sellick?

MR. MACAULAY:  Though the customer is not deemed an LTLT customer, the customer settled through the LTLT process is, has, and historically all of the customers to either side of that have been settled annually at the request of Hydro One through the LTLT process.  That is the sense -- the pseudo LTLT customer because, though it isn't an LTLT customer by definition that is connected to your line that you are providing the service, the fact of the matter is, is that it looks like one, it smells like one, it tastes like one, that is the way you settle.

Your request to us is to settle it through the LTLT process.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So it is just based on the settlement process that you are deriving that terminology; is that correct?

MR. MACAULAY:  These customers have been deemed on our process from you, to us, from HONI to E.L.K., as an LTLT customer up until the recent documents coming out for the settlement of all of the LTLT customers throughout all of our distribution area.  Up until then they've always been deemed an LTLT customer through the process.

MR. ENGELBERG:  But in fact they are not LTLT customers.  Would you agree?

MR. MACAULAY:  By your definition, yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Is it my definition?  Or is it the definition used by the Board and by the trade in general?

Is an LTLT not a situation where a customer is connected to the pole and line of another utility inside another service territory?

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  I have finished the questions I want to ask about rates, except for one item.

Are these settlements that you referred to a moment ago that are done for customers like this -- my understanding is those are going to be eliminated.  Is that correct?

MR. MACAULAY:  For these customers?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes.

MR. MACAULAY:  No.

MR. ENGELBERG:  As part of the LTLT process or any other process, these arrangements are not going to be terminated?

MR. MACAULAY:  No, they're not going to be terminated, because they still need to be settled, because they're still connected downstream of our wholesale metering point.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Wouldn't E.L.K. just bill Hydro One under what E.L.K. calls its embedded distributor rate?

MR. MACAULAY:  These sites have never been set up as an embedded -- under the embedded distributor rate.  They've always been settled through the LTLT process.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Are you currently billing Hydro One for consumption used behind the meter and as LTLTs?

MR. DANELON:  Currently we receive a file from Hydro One in which there is the consumption, we populate our spreadsheet, which is, I believe, in tab 6, and provide it back to Hydro One for their review.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Is there double-billing as a part of that?  And by asking you that, I am asking:  Are you billing Hydro One for consumption used behind the meter and as LTLTs?

MR. DANELON:  No.  Hydro One approves this entire process.  They provide us with:  Please go ahead and bill Hydro One.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay, thank you.

I would like to move on to the pole relocation, which was the first item dealt with this morning.

Would you please pull up E.L.K.'s response to Board Staff Interrogatory No.9, which was filed by E.L.K. on September 9th.

Are we there?  September 9th.  E.L.K.'s response to Board Staff IR 9.  And the pole relocation costs of $8432.49 -- sorry.  It is number -- September 9th, not 8th, is what I need.  That's the one.

There's an item of $8,432.49 for pole relocation costs, and the response as to what it is for says:
“To relocate existing dead end pole out of travelled portion of the Clark Street extension, southwest corner, to behind the curb line of the same intersection corner.  Also to add one pole on the south-east corner to shorten the spans and make the installation compliant with current construction standards.”

I am interesting in those last few words.  Can you elaborate on what the language "to make the installation compliant" is referring to?  What needed to be done to make it compliant?

MR. MACAULAY:  The span length extended with the pole relocation.  The span length that was existing on it originally was outside of design standards, current design standards, but it was an existing build.

So once we move the pole, once the pole had to be moved back a bit to get out of the road allowance, we needed to add a second pole in order to be conforming with standards to get the span lengths within reason.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Is that because of sags?

MR. MACAULAY:  Because of sags, because of it being a fly tap to have poles within proximity for support for the interconnection.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Was there anything E.L.K. had to do to make it compliant, other than to add a second pole?

MR. MACAULAY:  We built to the current standards, so we built to our spacing and we accommodated Hydro One spacing.

MR. ENGELBERG:  How about line openers, replacing fly taps with new fly taps, extending conductor --


MR. MACAULAY:  Yes, going backwards, the conductor had to be extended; it needed to reach the new pole.  The line openers we put in for work protection, so we didn’t wind up doing it on overtime.  We could do it during construction hours, which brought our costs down.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Why would it have ever needed to be done during overtime hours?

MR. MACAULAY:  If we needed to isolate the line, then we needed to turn off Sellick’s and we needed to turn off a couple of other customers down the road.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Are the costs of all of the items we just mentioned included in the $8,432, the fly taps, the additional pole --


MR. MACAULAY:  Yes, they are.

MR. ENGELBERG:  How much of the $8,432 -- I am not asking you to be exact, because you will probably have to estimate it.  But how much of the $8,432 is the result of removal of the pole that was in the middle of the road change, the road extension, as opposed to reinstallation of the existing pole and new facilities, such as a second pole in the new location?

MR. MACAULAY:  So, how much was just the removal cost?

MR. ENGELBERG:  How much was the removal, and how much of the remainder was for putting in a second pole and installing both poles in their new location?

MR. MACAULAY:  Removal costs would be minimal, but you can't remove the pole without taking the assets off the pole and further supporting them.

MR. ENGELBERG:  We realize that, but I am just asking you --


MR. MACAULAY:  I am trying to figure out where you are trying to go with this number.  But the cost to remove the pole would be minimal compared to the cost of installing  two poles and extending the assets to get onto the new structure to support it.

MR. ENGELBERG:   Thank you.  So following up on that line of questioning, is E.L.K. saying that not only was the removal of the old pole where it was non-discretionary, but that the specific location of the reinstallation of that pole and the installation of a second pole were also non-discretionary?

MR. VELLONE:  Do we understand what you mean by non-discretionary?  I just want to make sure.

MR. MACAULAY:  No, I don't.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Non-discretionary would be items that had to be done as a result -- as a direct result of the moving of the road.

In other words, was it absolutely necessary, non-discretionary, to have a second pole and was it absolutely necessary for the original first pole to be put where it was?

MR. MACAULAY:  It was absolutely necessary for the first pole to be relocated out of the road.  The municipality dictated where the pole was to be relocated to inside of their right-of-way.

The second pole had to be installed in order to be conforming with the standards in regulation 22.04.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Why did the municipality get to dictate where the pole was?

MR. MACAULAY:  It's their right-of-way.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Did you approach them to ask if it could be put in any other location on the road allowance, perhaps a location inside Sellick's service territory?

MR. MACAULAY:  Inside Sellick's service territory?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Let me finish my question, please.  That would have resulted in a lower cost, and perhaps wouldn't have resulted in the need for two poles?

Did you suggest that to them?

MR. MACAULAY:  I'm sorry, I am trying to -- Sellick's service territory?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Inside E.L.K.'s service territory.

MR. MACAULAY:  Inside of E.L.K.'s service territory there is -- one, the pole line is constructed immediately adjacent.  The property line is to the south; there is no additional space there.  So to dead-end the pole on our side of the road and come back across the existing HONI pole, we would have to secure an easement to get through there.

By the time we take the cost of still installing that -- what we're deeming as the second pole now, dead ending the infrastructure there, if you remove the cost of the one pole install inside of our distribution system plan or our -- I have allocated a cost of $2,442 for a typical pole install.

So if you take the one pole install out, and assume the rest of the costs are consumed with removing the fly taps, taking the rest of the infrastructure down, installing the one pole, we have little money left to secure an easement to get across and get into connecting to Hydro One's pole.

Secondly, it would wind up being a slacks span to get into it, because otherwise we would have to put a guy pole back across the road to support the pole.  We don't have a standard for a slack span that’s approved, so we would have to bring an engineering firm in to go ahead and design a standard for us to slack span.  Those costs would far exceed  the $2,400.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Why would you have had to come back across the road if you had dead ended it on a pole inside E.L.K.'s service territory?

MR. MACAULAY:  Because you have to support the tension from the line.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And would that have been for the purpose of serving Sellick?

MR. MACAULAY:  It would be for the purpose of servicing our existing customers.  If we were to terminate our line inside of our service area, we would still have to support the pole or the line tension.  With the pole line being immediately adjacent to the road, we would have to cross the road in order to be able to support the line tension.

MR. ENGELBERG:  You are not including Sellick when you say one of your existing customers, are you?

MR. MACAULAY:  Sellick is one of our existing customers off that portion of the line.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I am referring to Sellick's new location.

MR. MACAULAY:  I am referring to our existing customers.  Sellick is on that line on Clark Street.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Who is serving the Sellick new property now where the factory is being built?

MR. MACAULAY:  Hydro One is.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  When was the work completed regarding the two new poles?

MR. MACAULAY:  I believe it was July 29th, off the top of my head, the tail end of July.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Have the costs of the pole relocation been recovered from the developer?

MR. MACAULAY:  The costs for the pole relocation were invoiced to the Town of Essex.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So they're not going to be recovered from the developer?

MR. MACAULAY:  The Town of Essex has an agreement between them and the developer to deal with the servicing site -- the site servicing fees.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I understand that the new pole is inside Hydro One's service territory.  Is that correct?

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes, it is.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Did E.L.K. include Hydro One in the consultations with the municipality as to where the new pole would go?

MR. MACAULAY:  No, we did not.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Is there any reason for that?

MR. MACAULAY:  It's E.L.K.'s asset that needed to be relocated, so we dealt with the municipality.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So Hydro One, because of the fact that it is a service provider there, in its territory it has no right to be consulted?

MR. MACAULAY:  It didn't impact.  We didn't move it to service anything inside of Hydro One's territory.  We moved it to service our customers.  We relocated it, as we're required to, out of the roadway into the municipal right-of-way.  We worked with the municipality, as we're required to, to receive a location to plant the pole.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And you worked with the municipality only and not with the service provider -- with the service territory that is licenced by the OEB.  Is that correct?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  In E.L.K.'s pre-filed evidence, E.L.K. has referred to an e-mail sent by John Boldt of Hydro One dated May 27th, 2016, which can be found at Exhibit 2 of the October 6th E.L.K. updated evidence.

Do you recall that e-mail?

MR. MACAULAY:  I do.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Is E.L.K. still maintaining today that that e-mail signified agreement on the part of Hydro One to what E.L.K. was proposing?

MR. MACAULAY:  Between this and our original filing that we filed in April, which showed where the pole existed and where the pole was going to be relocated, outside of the conversations, there was no further -- there was no further notice or disagreement in the location of the pole.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg, I am wondering what relevance this line of questioning has to the matters that are listed in PO 3.

The chronology about who agreed to what was going to happen when about pole relocation doesn't seem to be related to the cost comparisons --


MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, I will tell you, Madam Chair, I can't flatter it by calling it a line of questioning, because this is my only question on that matter.  But I felt that it had to be asked because it was dealt with at length in E.L.K.'s evidence.  We don't think anything turns on it, and in fact the Hydro One witnesses will say that there was never any agreement, which is one of the reasons why we're here today.

But I did feel that we could not leave that allegation completely unanswered and left the Board to assume that Hydro One agreed that that e-mail represented Hydro One's agreement with what was being proposed.

If that is not a problem, that was my only question in that regard in any event.

MS. SPOEL:  Fine.  Let's leave it at that.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you very much.  I have no further questions.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.

Mr. Lanni, does Board Staff have any questions for this witness panel?
Cross-Examination by Mr. Lanni:

MR. LANNI:  My friend has asked most of the questions that I had planned to, but if the Board and the witnesses will bear with me, I will maybe take five to 15 minutes to read through what I might still consider asking.

You were first approached by E.L.K. in connection with this matter -- sorry, by Sellick in this matter, summer of 2015?

MR. MACAULAY:  I believe that's when they approached Hydro One.  I believe our communication began in the early months of 2016.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.

MR. MACAULAY:  Unless I am mistaken.  But I believe that was the case.

MR. LANNI:  And had you identified the need for relocating the historic pole before or after you met with Sellick?

MR. MACAULAY:  That came to light later on, once the development plans came in for the rest of the property.  Sellick's property is a separate parcel to the industrial park.

The industrial park plans, I was not privy to, E.L.K. was not privy to the industrial park plans until later to see that the pole was going to be in the road allowance.

MR. LANNI:  There have been a lot of updates to the evidence.  But if I could turn to E.L.K.'s responses to IRs dated November 10th, which I am assuming is up-to-date.

In response to Board Staff IR 1.1 there is an explanation as to why certain costs in the original offer to connect don't exist in the updated offer to connect.

With respect to item 2, it says:

“These costs facilitate new connection, were incorrectly charged to Sellick, when in fact they were incurred at the request of a different customer (the developer)."

I believe I heard earlier that you suggested that it was the municipality who requested these costs?

MR. MACAULAY:  Both parties.  The municipality, the municipality, the person in charge of capital infrastructure oversees the development of the process.  So the developer -- the developer's engineers and civil contractors reached out about the pole issue, and then the municipality's person in charge of capital and infrastructure reached out to have the pole relocated out of the road allowance.

MR. LANNI:  Would you agree that for the reader of this information, making the assumption that the developer is no longer a part of the application of this proceeding, that that cost would then be incurred by the single customer?

MR. MACAULAY:  We have conversed with our legal counsel.  We had received outside legal counsel, and the costs of the pole relocation was deemed not to be applicable to the customer, because it would have happened regardless of the municipal road project.  So therefore it couldn't be attributed to that specific customer.

MR. LANNI:  Just bear with me.  Okay.

In your offer to connect the customer, there is a requirement that the customer pay $55,000 as an expansion deposit, and that E.L.K. intends to retain $5,550 as a two-year warranty.

Can you explain how this amount was arrived at and what its purpose is?

MR. VELLONE:  Which version of the offer to connect are you referring to?

MR. LANNI:  The latest.  In fact, I think the earlier had a higher expansion deposit amount.

I guess -- and if the costs to connect the customer is less than $9,000, what is the purpose for such a large deposit?

MR. DANELON:  Yeah, the 5 percent is with respect to an alternative bid process, which is not applicable in this case.

Now, the expansion deposit is monies that are collected from the customer, and through the EEM process, basically, if the customer meets its target goal from a kilowatt standpoint as on the offer to connect, we refund them that -- those monies back.

MR. LANNI:  So it is volume-based?

MR. DANELON:  Yes.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.

Now, I have a copy of the Distribution System Code in front of me.  I don't have copies of it.  I don't know how good your recollection of the Code is, but if I could read section 6.3.4 of the Code, it says:

“The distributor shall not build any part of its distribution system in another distributor's licence service area except under three conditions.”

I just want to ask if your relocation of the pole further west into Hydro One's service territory falls under this exception?

MR. VELLONE:  Can we maybe pull the conditions up, so the witnesses can see it?  Which section are you looking at?

MR. LANNI:  6.3.4.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Lanni, is this an appropriate forum to discuss whether or not there are possibly breaches of the Distribution System Code, or is that really matter of enforcement for the Board?  Because I am not sure that we can -- there is an allegation there's been a breach of the Distribution System Code, and I am not sure we can deal with that.  So if that is where you are going --


MR. LANNI:  No, no, it is not along the lines of a compliance.  I just want to gain a better understanding of why the pole was not relocated into E.L.K.'s own service territory.

MS. SPOEL:  And is that one of the issues that is listed in PO 3?  Which issue in PO 3 does it relate to?  I want to keep constraints on this.

MR. LANNI:  Let me ask you this.  If the pole was relocated into E.L.K.'s service territory, would the costs to connect Sellick increase or decrease?

MR. MACAULAY:  If the pole was relocated into E.L.K.'s service area, then we would likely require Sellick to come to our pole for service, if we were still pursuing them as our customer, just as we're doing now as the customer increases load beyond the one MVA we supply to.

So then they're responsible to come to the high side, to the high voltage connection.

This would be no different.  We wouldn't typically -- Historically, we build underground and we're trying to move our infrastructure to underground.  So we would have the customer come to us with the high voltage connection.

So if our pole was sitting on the opposite side of the road, we would have them cross the road to us with their connection for their service.

So our cost, in essence, again would be the same for poles existing.  All we're doing is connecting the customer's assets.

MR. LANNI:  Those are my questions.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I would like to respond to your question, and also to Mr. Lanni.

MS. SPOEL:  Fine.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Hydro One's submission is going to be that this is not a forum to look at violations of the Distribution System Code.  But Hydro One believes that the question asked by Mr. Lanni is relevant for the purpose of showing that the relocation would not have been done where it was, but for the fact that E.L.K. made the assumption that it was going to bring a service area application and be successful.  So it was building ahead of time.

MS. SPOEL:  That's fine and you can certainly make that argument, if you wish.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

DR. ELSAYED:  I have one quick question.  Just looking at the numbers that Mr. Bacon presented.  The bottom line conclusion -- and correct me if I'm wrong -- comparing the two scenarios where Sellick is a E.L.K. customer versus a Hydro One customer, am I correct to conclude then that as far as the impact on Sellick, the difference in cost is roughly a thousand dollars?

MR. BACON:  Yes, a month.  Yes, on a monthly basis.

DR. ELSAYED:  On a monthly basis, yes, thank you.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Vellone, do you have any re-examination?
Re-Examination by Mr. Vellone:


MR. VELLONE:  I do have one question on redirect, Madam Chair, and I am going to be brief.

It is in reference to Exhibit K1.5, which was circulated by my friend earlier this morning.  It is an extract of appendix 2 A, the Distribution System Plan that was filed in connection with E.L.K.'s cost of service application.

And the purpose of the redirect is really just to put some context around the document that was put in front of you.

Mr. Macaulay, was your Distribution System Plan prepared in accordance with the chapter 5 filing requirements that the Board publishes for these things?

MR. MACAULAY:  Yes, it was.

MR. VELLONE:  And would it be fair to say that this section of the plan that's been extracted for the Board here is the section of the plan that deals with your Renewable Energy Generation Plan, which was included as a portion of your overall distribution system plan?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  And there are actually a bunch of requirements that the Board has in the chapter 5 filing requirements with respect to a REG plan, and that includes listing different types of constraints about the connection of new renewable generation.  Is that correct?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  So if I am looking at 5.4.3.4 above on the page there, that's talking about your evidence on REG constraints.  Is that correct?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  And the following section speaks to embedded distributor constraints as it relates to your Distribution System Plan?

MR. MACAULAY:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Thanks.  That's it.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  I think we will take our lunch break now and then hear the Hydro One witnesses immediately after lunch.

So let's return at one o'clock.  Is that sufficient time?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Can we make it 1:15?

MS. SPOEL:  We can make it 1:15, yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

MS. SPOEL:  We will resume at 1:15 with the Hydro One witness panel.  Thank you to the E.L.K. witness panel.  You have been helpful.
--- Luncheon recess taken at 12:05 p.m.
--- On resuming at 1:18 p.m.

MS. SPOEL:  Please be seated.


Okay.  Are there any preliminary matters before we start?


All right.  Mr. Engelberg, perhaps you could introduce your witnesses, and then we will have them affirmed.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair.


Closest to the Panel is William Cheng, and seated to his right is Henry Andre, and to his right is John Siebert.


I would just like to ask each one of them, in order, starting with Mr. Cheng, could you tell us how long you have been with Hydro One and Ontario Hydro before then and what you have been doing there the last few clears.


MR. CHENG:  I have been with Hydro One since 1999, since the division of Ontario Hydro to the severed company.


I have been with Hydro One first starting as a strategic planner to help develop the first generation of transmission rates, and then after that I moved to, in 2005, I moved to the transmission and distribution settlement department, worked as team lead, dealing with all of the settlements between Hydro One and IESO, as well as retail building for Hydro One large customer, including embedded LDC and generator.  And then in 2013 I have been promoted to a manager of the same department.


Prior to that, I joined Ontario Hydro in February 29th, 1988, and I have been starting off as an economist with Ontario Hydro, and then subsequently in various positions in Ontario Hydro.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you very much, Mr. Cheng.


Mr. Andre?


MR. ANDRE:  I have been with Hydro One and formerly Ontario Hydro for 30 years.  Worked in the field in a number of areas and then moved on to asset management, regulatory affairs, since 2005, and for the last six years I've been involved as a manager and now director of the transmission and distribution pricing function at Hydro One.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  And Mr. Siebert?


MR. SIEBERT:  I started with Ontario Hydro in 1986.  I've been a powerline technician through their apprenticeship in all levels of supervision in the powerline trades.


In 2009 I became a front-line manager, all of my time in Essex, and now currently I am the customer operation manager in Essex County.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.


Again, for purposes of my direct examination, I would like to deal with the matters of the rates and so forth first and then go to the pole later.


MS. SPOEL:  Right.  And perhaps we could have the witnesses affirmed before you do either of those.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Certainly.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


MS. CHRISTIE:  I am going to read you two statements, and afterwards I will ask you to say "I do" if you agree with the statement.

HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 1
John Siebert,

Henry Andre,

William Cheng; Affirmed.


MS. CHRISTIE:  Thank you very much.

Examination-In-Chief by Mr. Engelberg:

MR. ENGELBERG:  My first question, I guess, to Mr. Andre is, some of E.L.K.'s materials say that Hydro One is embedded inside E.L.K.; is that correct?


MR. ANDRE:  No, it is not.  Hydro One is the physical distributor of customers within its own service territory, and therefore it is not an embedded distributor.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  I understand there have been a number of tables and charts from E.L.K. regarding incremental fully-loaded costs to both Hydro One and E.L.K. arising out of Sellick's proposed connection at the new site.  Have you seen those tables?


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, I have.


MR. ENGELBERG:  What we're interested in today is the most current one.  I would like you to look at the chart on page 16 of E.L.K.'s final argument dated November 30th.  That is the chart at tab 2 at the top in the Hydro One compendium.


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, I have it.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Now, I was going to ask you if these are the most current figures that have been submitted by E.L.K., but I have to note that as a result of the evidence this morning there have been some changes made.  Did you hear those changes?


MR. ANDRE:  Yes.


MR. ENGELBERG:  For example, I understand that this morning Mr. Danelon said that the pole costs should be removed.  Is that correct?


MR. ANDRE:  That is -- that is what Mr. Danelon indicated.  We do not agree that the pole relocation costs should be removed.  Those costs are not in E.L.K.'s offer to connect, but they are costs that are relevant to the Board's economic efficiency test.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Why are they relevant to the Board's economic efficiency test, even if they're not shown on the offer to connect?


MR. ANDRE:  Because they do represent an incremental cost to connecting Sellick.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I would like to ask you also about the embedded distributor charge in the E.L.K. compendium at tab 1.  If you could turn to that.


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, I see it.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Would you agree that the embedded distributor charge has been updated from the number of up to 50,000 to approximately $126,000?


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, that's correct.  That was the testimony of E.L.K. this morning.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Aside from that, are there any other changes that you've heard about or are aware of regarding these figures?


MR. ANDRE:  Well, I mean, I think it would be helpful -- this table 1 is very helpful, I think, in illustrating the items requested by the Board in their procedural order, specifically summarizing the fully loaded connection costs, including one-time connection costs, and the ongoing annual incremental costs.


This table also provides --


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Andre, may I interrupt you?  Are you referring to table 1 at tab 2 of the Hydro One compendium?


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, I am.  So I would like to walk through that table, because I think it is important that all that is on the record right now is the original table that was submitted in E.L.K.'s argument at page 16.  And Hydro One has -- in table 1, we provide an update to what we think that table should look like, and really, my preference would be to walk through that and indicate where we see the changes.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Why don't we do that.


MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, which table was table 1?  Is this the table that is up on the screen right now?  This is the one that says "Hydro One table 1, fully loaded connection costs"?


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, that's correct, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  I just want to make sure I am on the right page.


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, no, absolutely.


All right.  So what this -- what the original table shows and our updates show is the incremental delivery costs to both E.L.K. and Hydro One, if Sellick is connected to them.


So the first column shows the incremental delivery costs to E.L.K. if Sellick were connected to them.  As you can see from our -- from table 1, we're essentially in agreement with all of the costs shown in the original table.


The only changes we made were to include a row that totals up the one-time connection costs.  So that's for ease of comparison between the two columns.


And we've provided -- so -- and as I said, the pole relocation costs, we believe those are appropriately part of E.L.K.,'s total costs to connect Sellick.  So we see E.L.K.'s one-time connection costs as being $17,135.16.


And then the incremental ST charge which E.L.K. had shown as a -- up to approximately 125K, we've shown the precise value of that, which is 124,565.


This cost represents the annual incremental charges from Hydro One to E.L.K. under the 100 percent load scenario.


We show the derivation of that number in our table 2, but I think it is helpful to -- rather than have all of these tables floating around, that is the same $124,000 number, roughly, that appeared in E.L.K.'s compendium, in tab 3 of E.L.K.'s compendium.


So I think Hydro One and E.L.K. are both in agreement that there is $124,564 incremental charge from Hydro One to E.L.K. if Sellick is connected within E.L.K.

Turning now to the second column, this column shows the incremental delivery costs to Hydro One, if Sellick was served by Hydro One.


So again no change.  We're in agreement with the number that was in the first row, the $16,000 that is Hydro One's costs for non-contestable work.  And we do not disagree with the rows about contestable work, civil works, and capital contribution, so those figures are the same as in the original E.L.K. table.


The first row where we differed from E.L.K.'s table is with respect to pole relocation costs.  This cost is not applicable to Hydro One, because our $16,000 figure up above already fully includes what it would take to connect Sellick to Hydro One's system.


So it doesn't -- we don't require that pole relocation in order to serve Sellick; that is the full costs are built into the $16,000.


So our view is that our one-time connection cost to connect Sellick to Hydro One is $16,000, as compared to the $17,000 that it would take for E.L.K. to connect Sellick.


Now, the subsequent rows, the $126,000 and $124,000 figure.  The $126,000 is the charges that -- the incremental delivery charges that E.L.K. would levy to Hydro One, and that number is essentially the same as what E.L.K. provided.


So if I could actually take you to where that number comes from in E.L.K.'s table, so if we could go to E.L.K. tab 3, the second table in tab 3.  Yes, that's the spot.


So all of -- E.L.K.'s original table on page 16 and our update focuses on incremental costs.  So what I would like to point out to the Board -- I know this shows total bill and later on I will have some discussion about total bill.  But it is important to notice that when it comes to electricity costs in the first column, and if you look at the electricity costs when it is applied by the IESO, those figures are identical.


For example, the first row, 2,905.57, that is the same cost as you see in the last column of electricity supplied by the IESO.  And the same with the global adjustment; those figures are the same.


And then down at the bottom of the chart when you look at the regulatory charges -- so the wholesale market service charge, for example the 1,012.59, it is the same 1,012.59 if it's the IESO.  That is why the table was just focussed on those central costs which really do represent the incremental costs.


Now, the $126,000, which we say should be the costs from E.L.K. to Hydro One, so if you look at the first column with the purple at the top, so if you add up the delivery charges from the -- starting with the figure 1,849.67 which is the service charge all the way down to the low voltage charge, those delivery charges -- this is for one month.  You sum those up, multiply by 12, and that gives you the $126,000.


So E.L.K. and Hydro One are in agreement that there would be incremental delivery charges from E.L.K. to Hydro One of $126,000.


Going back now to our table 1, so those are the charges that E.L.K. would levy to Hydro One because of how we're connected.  And as E.L.K., I think quite clearly explained this morning, there would also be charges from Hydro One to E.L.K. as a result of Sellick being connected to Hydro One, and those charges are in the amount of $124,564.00.  And again in E.L.K.'s compendium, the same table that we were just at, if you look at the middle Column, you can see there Hydro One charged to E.L.K. for Sellick down at the bottom is $10,380 per month or the annual charge is $124,568 -- a small difference due to rounding, but it is essentially the same charge.


So our view is -- not our view.  The charges show that for Hydro One, we have a charge -- or E.L.K. charges Hydro One $126,000.  Hydro One charges E.L.K. $14,000, for a net charge to be borne by Hydro One's ratepayers of $1,594.00.


This compares to the net charge to be borne by E.L.K. ratepayers of $124,564.00. And I do recognize that some of that $124,564 will be offset by payments from Sellick, and I hope to deal with that in a subsequent question when we talk about how much of that $124,564 is offset.


MS. SPOEL:  Can I just interrupt with a question?


MR. ANDRE:  Hmm-hmm.


MS. SPOEL:  When Mr. Bacon was dealing with this on the middle column of the page you have up on the screen here, he said that the $124,568 charge was the sub-transmission charge that is charged by Hydro One to E.L.K. regardless of whose customer E.L.K. is.


MR. ANDRE:  Right.


MS. SPOEL:  Right, okay.  So in your table 1, you have that incremental charge from Hydro One to E.L.K.  Under the first E.L.K. column, you have that as a positive number.  So Hydro One is charging it to E.L.K.

But in the next column, you have it as a credit.  But if Hydro One is charging it to E.L.K. either way, how does it suddenly become a debit?


MR. ANDRE:  Well, it is intended to show that it offsets the 126.  So those two numbers offset.  One is a charge from E.L.K. to Hydro One, and the other one is a charge from Hydro One to E.L.K.

So the negative was really meant to say that the 126 and the 124 offset each other.


MS. SPOEL:  But in the case where -- and what you are saying is in the case where Sellick is E.L.K.'s customer, there's no offsetting charge at all?


MR. ANDRE:  The offsetting payments come in from Sellick, and like I said I will talk -- I will talk about how much that is.  It certainly doesn't fully offset the $124,564.  But, yes, Sellick would help -- the payments from Sellick do help offset the $124,000.


Does it make sense to go there now?  Sure, okay.


MS. SPOEL:  Whatever.  Okay, fine.


DR. ELSAYED:   Just to clarify, if there is an offset, why is it not included in this table?


MR. ANDRE:  Because this table was showing the payments between Hydro One and E.L.K.

DR. ELSAYED:  Where would that offset come from then for the E.L.K.?


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, exactly.  Maybe we can go to that.


DR. ELSAYED:  Sure.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Andre, when you are doing that, perhaps you could refer to something else that was said this morning.  I understood Mr. Bacon to say that it would be a complete wash because of the monies coming in from Sellick.


Could you address that question when you walk us through the numbers?


MR. ANDRE:  Yes, that's exactly where I was going to.


So for that discussion, we can look again at the E.L.K. compendium, tab 3.


MR. VELLONE:  Just before we go, I might request a citation to the transcript, because I am not sure Mr. Bacon said it was a complete wash as it was characterized.  Are you just ad libbing?  I am not quite sure the witness necessarily said what was put to the witness.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I am ad libbing.  But I understood he said it would be equal to.


MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  As I recollect, Mr. Bacon said when you look at the total costs, the total costs, one offsets
-- more than offsets the other.


Sort of that is where I was going.  That's where I was going next.  And you know, I think I have shown that the incremental delivery charges -- you can look at this on an incremental delivery charge, or you can look at this on a total bill basis.


This morning when Mr. Bacon walked you through, the Board seemed to have a preference for looking at the total bill basis, so I am going to be consistent with that.  Because the claim that Mr. Bacon made was -- so when you walk through table 2, he showed you that --


MR. CHENG:  You're not showing the table.


MR. ANDRE:  No.  Sorry, not table 2, the table that is on the screen.  The second table in tab 3 of E.L.K.'s compendium, which is the one that is on the screen.

So the statement that was made was that when you look at the total incremental Hydro One charge to E.L.K. from Sellick and you look at their commodity, you see a total charge of $48,414.

And then they took you back and said, so of that amount -- and this is a monthly amount.  So this monthly amount on the total bill is exactly equivalent to the 124,000 when you look at just delivery on an annual basis.  The numbers get a little bit confusing.  So I will stick to the total bill.

So their claim was that the 48,000 was fully offset by the payments that come from Sellick.  And if you go to the first table, the table just above this, so they said, you see Hydro One, there's an additional charge of 48,000, but when you go here and you look at the payments that come from Sellick, there is a $49,165 payment, and that fully offsets the charges that they will get from Hydro One.

What is very key and what wasn't said this morning was, that 49,000, if you look at the first -- the first charges, the service charge, the two rate riders, and the volumetric charge, those first four charges, the 187, the negative 2,400, the 3,000, and 1,899, those are charges for E.L.K.'s distribution system.  Those are not charges associated with paying back Hydro One for its sub-transmission costs, or its transmission cost -- or its ST costs or its retail transmission costs.

So they're crediting the full amount of 49,000 towards the payment that needs to be made to Hydro One, but that is completely inappropriate, because those first four charges are related to the distribution to E.L.K.'s distribution system.  Those are costs that really should go back to offsetting the distribution system costs of E.L.K.'s ratepayers.

The only costs that should contribute to offsetting the 48,000 are the ones associated with -- so the three transmission charges that you see there, the 2,850, the 1,940, and the -- yes, those two, because they bundle line connection and transformation connection.  That's why they're -- the two are together, so those offset the additional transmission charges from Hydro One to them.

Then the $546.60 offsets the additional sub-transmission, or ST, costs that Hydro One levies them for the use of our upstream distribution system assets.

So those are the two costs that really should go towards offsetting.

So if you back off the first four items, instead of having $49,165 available to offset, they really should back off those first four items, which I show as being $2,673.47. So the 49,000 becomes instead 46,491.75.

So that bottom-line number, if you back off the costs that are associated with E.L.K.'s distribution system, should be $46,491.75.

That is the number that is appropriately compared to the 48,414 that is on the next table, which means that monthly E.L.K.'s other ratepayers are paying to the tune of $1,922 per month that isn't getting covered by Sellick to pay for the incremental costs from Hydro One.

When you add that over 12 months, that is over $23,000 a year that is being paid for by other E.L.K. customers, ratepayers.

So, like, the incremental charges, Madam Chair, that Hydro One levies them is for use of our distribution system, because our distribution system, we call it the ST charge, is from getting power from the transmission system to E.L.K.

So they have to pay for their use of that system.  So when Sellick is connected, they make additional use.  So we have to charge them for that.  We also have to charge them for additional transmission costs, because they're incurring that additional load, represents additional transmission costs that we pay to the IESO.  So we have to turn around and recover that from them.

So those are the two costs that -- how much of those costs are Sellick contributing to?  And they're not -- they're not fully contributing to those costs.

In fact, what would be helpful would be that IR response to HONI, question number 1, because I think -- I think it is already on the record, Madam Chair.

So if we could go to that, that is -- it's in Hydro One's compendium, on page 10 of Hydro One's compendium.  It was E.L.K. response to part 1 of an interrogatory from Hydro One, and I think this, again -- like I say, it was already on the record, but perhaps not crystal-clear.

So that there is a paragraph there that talks about the LV charges, and the very last sentence in that middle paragraph says:

"This means that of the 22,000 of additional LV charges, Sellick will pay 343.90 per year."

Now, E.L.K. corrected that.  They said it is 546.60, and it wasn't -- and that was a monthly amount, right?

So that 343.90, E.L.K. corrected that this morning.  It should have been 546.60 per month times 12, is $6,559.  So that number should be 659 (sic), but it is still much less than the 22,000 in incremental LV charges that Hydro One levies to them for use of our distribution system.

So that is one part where Sellick is not paying its full cost.

Then the second one relates to transmission.  So two paragraphs down, it says:

“With regards to Hydro One retail transmission charges of 89,000..."

And then they go on to talk about how the transmission charges themselves would not materially change.  And again, that was their testimony this morning, and I agree with them that the transmission charges wouldn't materially change.

But the question that the Board needs to consider is:  Of that 89,000 in additional transmission charges, which E.L.K. agrees would happen, how many of that -- how much of that is paid for by Sellick?

And the amount -- and I can show you how it is derived -- let's go look at how much Sellick pays in transmission charges.

So if we could go back to the first table in tab 3.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Could I ask you to just back up --


MR. ANDRE:  Sure.

MS. CHRISTIE:  -- and clarify for me from a -- the 89,000 you're referring to is transmission-related charges, right?  Would that not be -- would those charges or costs not be incurred whether Sellick was a HONI customer or whether they were an E.L.K. customer?

So wouldn't you consider that to be sort of a wash?  I mean, either -- whether they're HONI or E.L.K., you would have those -- those charges would be there?  Is that not correct?

MR. ANDRE:  Yeah, so you're correct.  You're correct that those $89,000 in transmission charges would incur Hydro One or E.L.K.

MS. CHRISTIE:  Right.

MR. ANDRE:  If it incurs in Hydro One, Hydro One's transmission -- so transmission charges are paid for by retail transmission service charges, RTSR.  That's what we call on the distribution side.

So Hydro One's retail transmission service charges would fully offset that, because Hydro One calculates its retail transmission service charges taking into account how much the -- the ST load actually contributes.

So the methodology for developing those retail transmission service charges is such that it actually ties back to the peak load that it would derive on the transmission system.

So -- and I haven't done the math, but we can do the math, and I think that would be actually very, very -- I think that would be very helpful.

So let's look at the 89,000 that we both pay, okay?  So on this table, this 89,000 for E.L.K. would be offset by two numbers:  2,850, which is the transmission network service on E.L.K., and 1,940.  Do you see those two figures?

MS. CHRISTIE:  This is on --


MR. ANDRE:  This is the E.L.K. compendium on the screen.

So, yes, those two figures would go towards paying that 89,000.

Now, I've done the math for you.  Those two figures together times 12 works out to $57,495.  So of the 89,000, E.L.K. will be paying those two times 12.  So they pay 57,500, say, okay?

So now let's look at Hydro One.  So are we clear on that?  So that is --


MS. CHRISTIE:  Sellick would pay E.L.K.

MR. ANDRE:  Sorry, Sellick -- yes.  Sellick would pay E.L.K.  I misspoke, right.  So they would pay 57,000 of the additional 89,000 that we actually charged to Sellick.

Now, I haven't done this math, so I am hoping the numbers -- I expect the numbers work out.  But for Hydro One, what Sellick would pay Hydro One for transmission is shown in the red numbers, the next column over.

So you can see there, it is made up of three components.  They would pay $4,185 -- and I would ask if someone could do this math for me, maybe somebody on my team there.

So $4,185 in network service, $976 for transmission line connection, and $2,219.81 for transformation connection.

The reason you see three numbers there is Hydro One on its ST class breaks up the transmission charge into three components, whereas E.L.K. only breaks it up into two components.  That's the only difference.

So if we add up those three charges and multiply them by 12 -- perhaps somebody can.  That's the monthly number, so it should be --


MR. ENGELBERG:  What we have calculated is $88,572.

MR. ANDRE:  Right.  Which is what I expect, because as I say Hydro One, when it develops its transmission charges, it ties them back to exactly what each class derives in terms of the payments that come to us from the IESO.  So I would have expected those two figures to be fairly close, and indeed they are.

So of the $89,000 in incremental transmission charges, Sellick would pay $88,000 and change.  Whereas if they're connected to E.L.K., what did we say?  They only pay $57,495.  So those are the two compendiums.

Of the $22,000 in sub-transmission or LV charges, they only pay $6,559.  And of the $89,000 in transmission charges, they only pay $57,495.  So that's why we say it is -- it isn't the full $129,000, but it's nowhere near -- you know, it is still well below that amount.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Andre, I don't want to interrupt you, but --


MR. ANDRE:  That was it.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Because of the numbers, can you tell us, from what you've said, how much roughly of those charges are being paid by Sellick and how much of those charges are being paid by E.L.K.'s other ratepayers, if Sellick connects to E.L.K. rather than to Hydro One?

MR. ANDRE:  Right.  So it is this figure here?  Okay.  So of the $124,568 that would be the incremental charge from Hydro One to E.L.K., $64,054 would be paid for by Sellick, leaving a total of $60,513 to be paid for by E.L.K.'.s other ratepayers.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Andre, you pointed out the evidence that you just gave as a difference between the numbers provided by Mr. Bacon on behalf of E.L.K. and Hydro One's statement.

Are there any other points that were made by Mr. Bacon that you disagree with?  Or does that, what you just said, summarize what Hydro One's calculations are and the differences?

MR. ANDRE:  No.  That combined -- when I did it on a total bill basis, which I think was the original basis, I think I have already shown those numbers as well.  If you look at a total bill basis, the claim that the $48,000 when you look at everything was fully offset by the $49,000.  I think I already explained how that $49,000 isn't in fact all towards offsetting the costs, that it should be $46,000.

So between those two items, that covers everything I wanted to say.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  I would now like the panel to look at section 7.3.8 of E.L.K.'s pre-filed evidence dated June 21st, and specifically attachment 3.1 of the pre-filed evidence.

Is everyone able to read that, perhaps on the hard copy?

It is my understanding that E.L.K. suggests there that there would be a LTLT situation if Hydro One connects Sellick.

Can you tell us whether there would be a LTLT or a retail point of supply if HONI serves Sellick inside HONI's service territory?

MR. CHENG:  No, there would not be any new LTLT or retail point of supply.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And why is that?

MR. CHENG:  Because Sellick will be connected from a Hydro One service territory connecting to a Hydro One asset and billed by Hydro One.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And what feeder would Sellick be served from?

MR. CHENG:  It would be served from Kingsville TSM7 feeder, which is owned by Hydro One Distribution.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  I would like to leave the matter of rates and go to the matter of the pole.

Mr. Siebert, I believe you can answer this.  I would like to ask you about the pole -- the new pole that was recently installed by E.L.K. inside Hydro One's service territory.

I understand that Hydro One agrees that the pole had to be moved because of the road work.  Is that correct?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes.  Yes, Hydro One does agree that the pole needed to be moved from the constructed road there.

MR. ENGELBERG:  When was it that E.L.K. told Hydro One about the -- their intention to relocate the pole?

MR. SIEBERT:  I first became aware that it was probably going to be needed when I saw the service area amendment.  I know it was dated April 12th, but I didn't get it until April 20th.

And then I first became aware it was actually going to happen without the service area amendments' outcome on July 20th; I happened to be out by Sellick.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  Now, are you familiar, as part of your work, with this particular territory, Roseborough road --


MR. SIEBERT:  Oh, yes, very.

MR. ENGELBERG:  -- and the locations where the poles are?

MR. SIEBERT:  Hmm-hmm.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Was there only one place that pole could have been moved?  Or are there other places war where it could have been moved?

MR. SIEBERT:  There is other options where that pole could have been moved.

They're in the October 20th, Exhibit 1, tab 1, schedule 2, page 2 of 3.

Mr. Macaulay did --


MR. ENGELBERG:  Let me interrupt you.  That is Hydro One's response to Board Staff IR number 2?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg, I don't think that the chronology about the pole relocation -- apart from the question of whether or not the cost is legitimately part of the cost to connect, -- I don't think the whole question of when and how, and who was involved and who gave permission, and so on is part of the list of topics under PO 3 that we're interested in hearing about today.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I agree, Madam Chair.

MS. SPOEL:  I am not going to make a decision on that.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I agree and I don’t intend to go there.  This evidence Mr. Siebert is giving is exclusively related to the cost of where it could have been moved.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay, sorry.  I thought you were asking about when and if it could have been done alternatively, and I thought it was to do with the scenarios around relocation.

MR. ENGELBERG:  If you would proceed, Mr. Siebert?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes.  So barring all of that, although the pole had to be moved and there was other options which we supplied, the -- where the pole ended up being moved to actually is a very advantageous location to make a connection to the new service for Sellick.  That's why the costs should be included in the Board's economic assessment.

MR. ENGELBERG:  When you say it is advantageous where it ended up being moved, advantageous to whom?

MR. SIEBERT:  Both E.L.K. to position themself for a service-area amendment, as well as the customer.

MR. ENGELBERG:  You said there were other locations to which it could have been moved.  Where are those?

MR. SIEBERT:  As Mr. Macaulay described this morning, they would have been in to the E.L.K. service territory, and they may have taken some standards which he described that he doesn't have availability to, and maybe caused easement issues, or there could have been an underground option that could have been pursued too.

MR. ENGELBERG:  What is your understanding of what the cost comparison would have been had the pole been removed to one of those locations that was available inside the E.L.K. service territory?

MR. SIEBERT:  I would estimate the underground installation at being slightly higher, and I would estimate it as Norm -- sorry, Mr. Macaulay described this morning as now that he made us aware that he needed special standards to be very close or equivalent.

MR. ENGELBERG:  In its own offer to connect, has Hydro One included the costs of installing the relocated pole?

MR. SIEBERT:  No.  Hydro One doesn't need that pole to connect to Sellick.

MR. ENGELBERG:  What would Hydro One do if this application were successful and this lot were carved out of Hydro One's service territory and given to E.L.K.?  How would you connect Sellick?  Excuse me, how would Hydro One connect Sellick if this application were not successful?

MR. SIEBERT:  Were not successful?  The most economic condition would be to obtain the newly-installed E.L.K. pole and conductor, upgrade our system and connection agreement to reflect the proper ownership, and connect Sellick right to that newly installed pole.

MR. ENGELBERG:  If that doesn't transpire, what would Hydro One need to do to connect Sellick?

MR. SIEBERT:  We would put in a 55-foot Class 2 line pole, Bell-owned line pole, a road cross pole, and then Sellick would bring their underground over to our pole and we would bring it up there and connect it.

MR. ENGELBERG:  What impact, if any, would that have on costs?

MR. SIEBERT:  Well, it would leave E.L.K.'s current assets stranded, and it would be slightly higher than if we took over the E.L.K. pole.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Now, I want to go to a matter that I asked one question about of the E.L.K. panel, and I want to ask one question to you, regarding the e-mail sent by John Boldt of Hydro One on May 27th, 2016, which can be found at Exhibit 2 of E.L.K.'s October 6th updated evidence.

I would like to ask you:  Did Hydro One ever agree that that e-mail represented the facts?

MR. SIEBERT:  No.  No, this e-mail was never intended to be consent --


MR. ENGELBERG:  What was --


MR. SIEBERT:  -- merely minutes of a meeting.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  And lastly, would you take a look at the map that was provided this morning or at the map at Exhibit 6 of Hydro One's intervenor evidence, which shows Roseborough Road and the matter of the location of the new Sellick factory.

How would you describe the existing border between Hydro One and E.L.K. as it stands now?

MR. SIEBERT:  Well, the existing border's well-existed -- well-defined boundary between two distributors, straight up Roseborough Road there.

To add to the other, the numbers 1 to 9 customers in red that are connected to our M7, we also have some customers connected on the same -- on Roseborough Road on the west side that are connected to a distribution feeder circuit also.  So really, that whole road's full of Hydro One customers.

MR. ENGELBERG:  You referred to the ones to the north.  Are there also Hydro One customers to the west and to the south?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes.  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  What would the boundary look like if this service-area amendment were granted for the Sellick property?

MR. SIEBERT:  It would not be well-defined, and I don't -- it could be awkward in some situations for someone responding to a safety or trouble call or something like that at night.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I believe it was referred to in this morning's evidence as a "dent" into Hydro One's service territory.  Would you agree with that?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes, I would.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I have no further questions of the panel.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.

Mr. Vellone.

MR. VELLONE:  I am going to request maybe a bio break for myself, but also about two minutes to collect my thoughts just so that cross-examination is focused, that I don't waste a lot of -- there is some new information we heard during in-chief --


MS. SPOEL:  Yes.  Why don't we take a ten-minute break --


MR. VELLONE:  That would be perfect.

MS. SPOEL:  -- and everybody can collect themselves.
--- Recess taken at 2:05 p.m.
--- On resuming at 2:15 p.m.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  Please be seated.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

MS. SPOEL:  Oh, you're welcome.

MR. VELLONE:  I think for the purposes of cross what I might try to do is touch on the stuff touched in-chief first, and then go to more of the background things I need to deal with later, to the extent I don't already cover them.
Cross-Examination by Mr. Vellone:


Mr. Andre, my first question is for you.  During your in-chief testimony, I understand that you confirmed factually that Hydro One is not embedded within E.L.K., is that correct?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  I think we're in agreement on that point, by the way.

But is my understanding correct that Hydro One does attract an embedded distributor charge from E.L.K.?  And I think it arises largely out of E.L.K.'s role as the wholesale market participant upstream at the Harrow North PME; is that understanding also correct?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes, that's correct.  We are subject to the tariff, the embedded distributor classification tariff, and that tariff recovers the costs associated -- well, currently it recovers a little more than just the costs associated with billing that meter.  But in E.L.K.'s proposed cost allocation, they're going to address that issue and ensure that the only costs that get allocated to Hydro One are associated with providing the metering and billing services which, yes, I agree, is the only services that are being provided.

MR. VELLONE:  We are on the same page.  Thank you.

For my second line of questioning, I am going to ask to pull up tab 3 of the E.L.K., compendium which was filed this morning.

This is the table that Mr. Bacon walked us through this morning and, Mr. Andre, this is the table that you also referred the Board panel to during your in-chief.

I have a few questions regarding this particular table, just to make sure I understand what it is you're suggesting this Board panel should do.

And the first question, I think, relates to the line items in the left hand column titled “Service charge”, titled “E.L.K. rate rider disposition of deferral variance”, “E.L.K. rate rider disposition of GA”, and common “ST - distribution volumetric”.

Do you see what I am referring to there?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes, I do.

MR. VELLONE:  Is my understanding correct that you're suggesting that the Board Panel should be disregarding these incremental revenues when looking at the impact of the incremental Sellick load when they're considering this case?  Is that basically what you are saying, just don't look at these, look at these other things?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes, that's exactly what I'm saying.  Transmission charges are collected in the retail settlement variance account, RSVA transmission.

So these transmission charges that you see offset the transmission charges that flow to E.L.K. from Hydro One.

And then the low voltage charge offsets the sub-transmission charges that flow from Hydro One to E.L.K. and get tracked in the RSVA LV account.

So those two charges, the transmission and the low voltage, are the ones that contribute to offsetting Hydro One's embedded distributor charges to E.L.K.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you very much.  I want to stay on the line items that you are asking the Board Panel to not focus on for a moment.

I can bring it up if you want, but will you take it, subject to check, that in the economic evaluation model that was prepared by E.L.K., they had to estimate -- one of the things they had to estimate was incremental O&M costs associated with the connection of this new customer, and that incremental O&M cost was forecasted at $2,842 per year.  Can you take that subject to check?  I can pull it up.


MR. ANDRE:  I will take that subject to check.

MR. VELLONE:  Subject to check, thank you.  And these four line items are really about recovering the other incremental costs that E.L.K. incurs associated with connecting this customer.  Those other incremental costs are all fleshed out in that offer to connect.  So we know what the incremental O&M costs are; they're $2,842 per year.

We also know what the incremental capital costs are, it is $8700.  That works out to roughly $870 per year.  Can you take that subject to check?

MR. ANDRE:  I wasn't writing the numbers.  Sorry, could you repeat what numbers you would like me to take subject to check?

MR. VELLONE:  Certainly.  You are aware that E.L.K. has forecasted an incremental capital cost of connection that is around $8,700.  I am just trying to create a comparable number here, make an annual number.  That's $870 per year.

MR. ANDRE:  Okay.

MR. VELLONE:  And if you add the incremental O&M number that is in the economic evaluation model, plus the incremental capital cost on a yearly basis, that's $3,864 per year.  That's the incremental costs incurred by E.L.K. to connect this customer.

And in return, they're going to receive from this customer a sum of these four numbers, which I think you gave to us, which is $2,673.49 per month.  Is that correct?

MR. ANDRE:  Your total of what is being received is correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Yes.

MR. ANDRE:  These four numbers are derived from E.L.K.'s rate schedule for its general service greater than 50 to 4999-kilowatt class.  So these rates are intended to fully recover all of the costs associated with serving all of E.L.K.'s general service greater than 50 to 5,000 kilowatt class customers.

So these costs represent much, much more than the revenue requirement that would be associated with the 8,700 capital amount that you said and/or the 3,864 in OM&A.

Those represent a very, very tiny portion of these costs, which are the full costs associated with serving that entire class.

MR. VELLONE:  I think we're circling around the point without actually hitting it here, and I will try a slightly different approach.

When you brought the Board panel to the incremental ST charges, your point was E.L.K.'s customers are going to bear these incremental charges.  I'm trying to flesh out the rest of that picture.

Look at the other incremental charges, right, flesh it all the way out.  And to the extent that there's a windfall, an excess profitability in these distribution charges when you look at those other charges, I am trying to figure out why you are asking this Board Panel to ignore those.

MR. ANDRE:  I am asking them to ignore it because these costs represent charges that are currently being paid for by other E.L.K. customers in this class which, as I said, is the GS 50 to 5,000 kilowatt class.

So if you say I'm going to take all of these costs that are paid for by everybody in that class and attribute them to Sellick paying the incremental LV and transmission charges, you are penalizing E.L.K.'s other ratepayers because they should be benefitting from these four items that Sellick would pay.

MR. VELLONE:  We're not on the same page.

MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. Andre, if Sellick is paying in those other -- those other amounts is paying more than the direct costs incurred to serve them and it's all going into the class, that GS greater than 50 and less than 5,000 or whatever it is class, are not the other customers in that class benefitting from the fact that they're overpaying a little bit on that part of the bill?  Perhaps they're underpaying on one part and perhaps overpaying on another?

MR. ANDRE:  What you say is true, Madam Chair.  But what E.L.K. is asking you to do is to say that all of this overpayment, let's use that to offset the sub-transmission and transmission charges, the incremental charges from Hydro One.

They're not saying let's, you know, let's attribute it to the general service class.  Because in their comparison, they asked you to include these as an offset to Hydro One's sub-transmission and transmission costs, or LV and transmission costs.

I agree with you, if these costs flowed to the GS 50 to 5,000 class, it would be of benefit to them.  But that's not what you are being asked to do.  You are being asked to take these costs and credit it towards those other payments.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  I didn't understand we were actually being asked to do anything yet.  My understanding was that we're trying to listen to the evidence here.

MR. ANDRE:  Yes, agreed.

MS. SPOEL:  And I am just trying -- and I think that you suggested earlier that Sellick would be underpaying on the transmission part of it and that would be -- cause a -- create a burden for the rest of E.L.K.'s customers, and I think that what I have just asked you now is, well, perhaps there might be some benefit for the customers from other parts of the bill.

I don't want you to think that my question is going any further than that.  That is just, if they pay a bit less than their share in one place, maybe they're -- maybe they're paying a bit more than their share in another part, and it will go to the benefit of the other customers in that customer class because it's an -- it is a cost allocation and an average for the class.  Is that fair?

MR. ANDRE:  The -- yes, the --


MS. SPOEL:  If it's not fair, please say so, because I am not trying to put words in your mouth.  I am just trying to understand what it is that Hydro One's position is on this.

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  My colleague has just correctly pointed out that that would be fair in terms of the rates as they are now.  The moment they reset their rates, then that benefit disappears because the costs associated with serving Sellick would be -- would start to be included in the rates.  So that is a very temporary benefit until rates are reset.

MS. SPOEL:  Right.  But at the moment, since we're doing this on the basis of current rates, there may be some benefit in some areas and there may be some costs in some areas?

MR. ANDRE:  And what we have shown is that this is an annual cost.  So it is not like these costs won't exist going forward.  So if this benefit that exists short-term disappears the minute you reset rates, then you are back to the same cross-subsidization problem that you have.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay, thank you.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I am not sure I exactly got where I wanted to on that, but we will leave it be.  I do have another question --


MS. SPOEL:  I didn't want to interrupt your cross-examination.

MR. VELLONE:  That's okay.  I think you articulated it better than I could, so...

I do have another question on the same table.  Can we flip to page 2 of this table momentarily.  My understanding during your in-chief, Mr. Andre, was that in response to a question from the Board Panel you agreed that the column that is titled "H1 charge to E.L.K. for Sellick", you agreed with the idea that that would be charged to E.L.K. regardless of who ends up servicing the Sellick customer, and that is because of the upstream wholesale metering point, Harrow North PME.  Is that understanding correct?

[Witness panel confers.]


MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  I apologize if I directed the question to the wrong witness.  Please feel free to jump in if I do do that.  I am not going to be offended.

So my question is actually pretty simple then.  I want to focus down on to the two line items that you asked the Board Panel to focus on during your in-chief -- sorry, three line items.

The first, let's start with the low voltage rate.  So flipping back a page, you will see that E.L.K. in the first column will recover from Sellick $546.60 under the low voltage rate in that scenario, where E.L.K. provides service to Sellick.  Is that correct?  Am I reading that right?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes, I see that number is on the chart.

MR. VELLONE:  If we go over two columns and we look at the circumstance where Hydro One is providing service to Sellick, am I reading this correct that E.L.K. will recover from Hydro $546.60 under the low voltage rate?  Am I reading that right?  That is in the pseudo long-term load transfer type of settlement arrangement?

MR. ANDRE:  I wouldn't go to that column, because I think we have already indicated there is no LT or -- LT or pseudo.  But that same number, I think where you should be referring to is the second table, first column, which shows E.L.K. charges to Hydro One.  Yes, the low voltage charge that they would levy to Hydro One appears there as well.  It is $546.60.

MR. VELLONE:  That's great.  I am okay using the embedded distributor rate for the purposes of this.  We will deal with that other concern later.

And if I look at the other two lines that you asked the Board Panel to look at, transmission network service, transmission line connection, I see 2,850.64 and 1,940.67, that E.L.K. would charge to Sellick if they're providing service.  Is that correct?  Am I reading that right?

MR. ANDRE:  Charge to Hydro One?

MR. VELLONE:  Sorry.  I am in the first page.

MR. ANDRE:  Oh, you're back on the first page, okay.

MR. VELLONE:  My apologies, first column -- first block of columns, where E.L.K. is providing service to Hydro One -- sorry, where E.L.K. is providing service to the Sellick customer.  And I am looking at the two lines titled "transmission network service" and "transmission line connection".  And these quantities are 2,850.64, 1,940.67.  Am I reading those right?

MR. ANDRE:  You are.  Now, it gives me a little cause for concern, because --


MR. VELLONE:  I think you know where I am about to go, so...

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  Well, this is your evidence.  And unless the retail transmission service charges that E.L.K. has are identical for the embedded distributor class as they are for the general service 50 to 5,000, those numbers are incorrect.

I can -- I do have E.L.K.'s schedule, tariff schedule. with me.  I can do a quick check.

MR. VELLONE:  Actually, so I'm going to -- I was going to ask for an undertaking in any event.  So let's just do it now.

MR. ANDRE:  Okay.  So just so you know --


MR. VELLONE:  Can you undertake to do a review of this entire table?

MR. ANDRE:  -- they are the same.

MR. VELLONE:  They are the same.

MR. ANDRE:  They are the same.

MR. VELLONE:  Oh, you're done?  Okay.

MR. ANDRE:  So --


MS. CHRISTIE:  Could you, sorry, just clarify what is exactly the same?

MR. ANDRE:  What is the same?

MS. CHRISTIE:  Yes.

MR. ANDRE:  So, sorry, Mr. Vellone was confirming that the transmission charges that E.L.K. would levy Sellick are the amounts show in column 1 of the first table in tab 3, the 2,850, the 1,940, and, yes, that's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Yes.

MR. ANDRE:  As far as I -- it is your table, so...

MR. VELLONE:  And if you go to the next page and you look at the circumstance where E.L.K. charges Hydro One using the embedded distributor rates, it is the same amounts being charged to Hydro One by E.L.K.; is that correct?

MR. ANDRE:  It's in the table.  I can confirm that I see the same numbers in the table.

MR. VELLONE:  But you are not -- okay.  Close enough.

Would you take it -- so I am going to put a proposition to you here based on what we just walked through that if E.L.K. is being charged by Hydro One in both instances these incremental charges and is collecting the same amount either from Hydro One or from the Sellick customer in these line items, that E.L.K.'s ratepayers -- even if you look at just these line items -- are neutral either way.  They're going to be suffering the same either way.

MR. ANDRE:  No, Mr. Vellone.  Absolutely not.

You took me to -- the column you took me to on page 2 are E.L.K. charges to Hydro One.  They're not the charges that Hydro One charges to E.L.K. for Sellick.

MR. VELLONE:  I would completely agree with that.  I am trying to figure out what the impact is, just for now, on the E.L.K. ratepayer group.

So what I need to do, I think, is look at the charges flowing into E.L.K. and look at the revenues coming in to E.L.K. to figure out what that is.  That's different.  I am not making suggestions about the Hydro One ratepayer group.

MR. ANDRE:  All right.  So if you want to look at the charges flowing into E.L.K., as you say, the charges flowing into E.L.K. include the amounts in the second column of your table 3.  The $4,185, the 976, and the 2,219 are all transmission charges that flow into E.L.K. as a result of being embedded within Hydro One.

MR. VELLONE:  These are all fees that E.L.K. has to pay to Hydro One?

MR. ANDRE:  Correct.

MR. VELLONE:  I am not sure I am going to get you to agree, so I will leave that line of questioning where we're at.  I will try one last time.

Your observation -- if we go to the first column of this table, you are asking the Board to consider three line items titled “transmission network service”, “transmission line connection” and “low voltage rate”, sum those up and compare it against the amounts that Hydro One's charging to E.L.K. to figure out what the impact on E.L.K.'s ratepayers is.  Is that a summary of what you said in chief, to add those up?

MR. ANDRE:  And that is the charges that -- the additional transmission charges that E.L.K. is going to have to come up with, yes.

MR. VELLONE:  Yes.  And if those same -- if I flip forward to the embedded distributor rate, E.L.K. gets the same amounts from these three line items when Sellick is a Hydro One customer.  Isn't that right?

MR. ANDRE:  It's which same amounts?

MR. VELLONE:  $546.60 is the low voltage monthly rate.
 $2,850.64 is the transmission network service monthly rate. $1,940.67 is the transmission line connection monthly rate under the embedded distributor rate class.

MR. ANDRE:  Just give me a sec?

[Witness panel confers]


MR. ANDRE:  So, Mr. Vellone, I would -- and I think the best place to see the summary of the charges that are flowing between Hydro One and E.L.K. is in the table that we provided, which was an update to E.L.K.'s table in their final argument, page 16.

So table 1 in Hydro One's compendium, tab 2, which shows the total incremental -- annual incremental charges that flow from E.L.K. to Hydro One, and from Hydro One to E.L.K.

And you can see that -- so it is column 2.  If Sellick is a Hydro One customer, those two numbers -- which are the same numbers that E.L.K. come to in their evidence, the $126,159 and the $124,564, accounting for rounding and minor variations in the rates that are used -- that shows that the net difference between charges that flow between Hydro One and E.L.K. is only 1,594.

I would have to look at the numbers.  I think you are trying to -- the numbers that you have given me, something is missing, because both Hydro One and E.L.K. agree on the amounts that flow between ourselves as summarized in that table and it only leads to a net difference of $1,594, whereas E.L.K. has an incremental cost of $124,000 and we went over how much of that $124,000 would actually be paid for by Sellick.

MR. VELLONE:  So I am going to admit something that you usually don't admit, which is I don't fully understand the analysis that is in Hydro One, table 1, especially those two lines at the bottom and how you are arriving at that subtraction.

I did hear Mr. Bacon in cross-examination respond to the question: do you think that's right?  And I think he said no, because it is doing a subtraction of stuff that is actually a flow of money.

So I would like to bring it back to the table that I do understand.

I understand you didn't prepare the table.  You have had an opportunity, I assume, to review it before the hearing.  This is the table included at tab 3 of the E.L.K. compendium.

You have had an opportunity to take a look at this before the hearing?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes, I have.

MR. VELLONE:  You didn't check all of the numbers, did you?

MR. ANDRE:  Because they were essentially the same numbers that Hydro One had calculated, I didn't check every single number.  But they were working out to plus or minus a few dollars from the same numbers that Hydro One had calculated.

MR. VELLONE:  I would request an undertaking for you to do a bit more of a thorough review here and just check the numbers, and to advise the Board Panel if there are mistakes in here that you think there are.

MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, Mr. Andre, while we have this table that Mr. Vellone was having trouble understanding, I have trouble understanding it as well.  I just have a question for you that might help me in my understanding.

You've got in the first column, if Sellick is Hydro One's -- sorry, if Sellick is E.L.K.'s customer, then you have an annual incremental embedded distributor charge from Hydro One to E.L.K.

Why would -- oh, that's the sub-transmission charge?  Okay.

MR. ANDRE:  And then the transmission --


MS. SPOEL:  But that charge is paid.  That charge gets charged regardless of whether Sellick is a Hydro One customer or a E.L.K. customer, as I understand it.  So I am not sure why it is showing up as a negative in the second column.  Shouldn't it either be -- I think you are double-counting by not only not adding it, but you are also subtracting it.  So you are taking it -- in effect taking it out twice maybe.

MR. ANDRE:  Sorry, Madam Chair.  Which table?  I missed the very first part.

MS. SPOEL:  Your table one with the $126,000 that shows the net of 1594.

MR. ANDRE:  Hmm-hmm.

MS. SPOEL:  I understand that if Sellick is E.L.K.'s -- either way, there's an embedded charge.  We’ll call it an embedded distribution charge, but it is the sub-transmission charge because of the Harrow PME and that gets charged, Mr. Bacon said -- and I think you agreed with him, that's charged regardless of whose customer it is.

MR. ANDRE:  Right.

MS. SPOEL:  So I don't understand why that becomes -- I understand the money flows from E.L.K. to Hydro One, so it is a cost for E.L.K.  But I think when you showed it as a negative in the Hydro One column, it should actually be zero.  It shouldn't be negative, because it is coming into Hydro One it is going out again because it has to be paid.

E.L.K. pays it either way.  I think what happened is I think it has been double-counted, that it shouldn't be a negative, it should be zero.  Maybe.  Maybe that is the problem with this table.

But if it is a charge that happens either way, I am not sure how it could be positive for one and negative for another because the delta between the two is 300 or whatever it is, 248,000 – no, whatever.  Twelve times two, 2400 – yes, $248,000 is the delta between those two numbers, between column one the E.L.K. column and Hydro One column.

Maybe you could explain why it goes from a positive to actually to be a negative as opposed to being a zero.

MR. ANDRE:  Ma'am, as I tried to say earlier, we can agree that the distributor charge from Hydro One to E.L.K. happens whether Sellick is connected to E.L.K. or connected to Hydro One.

So that $124,000, that is why you see the same $124,000 in both places.

I think the fact it is showing negative, perhaps the negative should have appeared on the 126,000, because the charge from E.L.K. to Hydro One, that 126,000, only occurs if E.L.K. is a Hydro One customer.

So the negative --


MS. SPOEL:  You mean Sellick.

MR. ANDRE:  Sellick is a Hydro One customer.

The negative was only intended to show there is a difference between the money that comes into Hydro One and the money that goes out of Hydro One if Sellick is a Hydro One customer.

So it is not intended -- now that I look at it, probably the negative number should have been on the 126.  But it is intended to show the difference.

The $124,000 is the exact same amount.

MR. CHENG:  May I?

MR. ANDRE:  Sure.

MR. CHENG:  One other thing this is unfortunately part of the confusion caused by the current arrangement.  I understand it is quite confusing.

But the fact that -- the reason why we have these numbers showing the way that it is is because when Sellick is a Hydro One customer and -- but unfortunately it is captured by E.L.K. wholesale metering upstream, and then the one thing is that for E.L.K. to invoice as a settlement agent for Hydro One to invoice energy charge, which is quite correct, as a settlement agent, they purchase -- they have meter capture IESO settlement for us.  We pay the service charge to them.  No problem.

Unfortunately, in their approved embedded distribution tariff schedule they also have the sub-transmission charge, LV charge, what they call, as well as retail transmission charge.

So what happened is that in order -- and because in order to settle that correctly between the two parties, we have to -- once we receive the invoice of $126,000 that -- from E.L.K. for the billing for the upstream meter, we have to bill them back on the $125,000, because we do not have to pay for the charge of the Sellick load twice.

So that's why, in the current arrangement, in order to bill each party correctly, we have to -- while we receive $126,000 invoice for delivery charge from E.L.K., we also will invoice 124,000 to E.L.K.  And so to reflect the net settlement between the two parties so that Hydro One would not double-bill.

May I also point out prior to probably 2013, while E.L.K. have no embedded LDC rate, E.L.K. actually only invoiced Hydro One energy charge per a fixed charge, have no retail transmission charge, as well as distribution charge.

Unfortunately, in their rate application in 2013 they developed a way to have those charges in, and Hydro One didn't pick it up until later on, and so that we have been paying those charges incorrectly.

And then after 2015, once we discovered those, we have corrected to reflect a little bit of confusing settlement between the two parties.  But the bottom line, if I have assure you as we have all the supporting documents behind this table, we file already to show that in order to correctly settle between the two parties we actually have to do this billing arrangement, and the bottom line is that Hydro One for this billing arrangement, for Sellick to be a Hydro One customer, but unfortunately captured by E.L.K. upstream meter, there would be billing from proof both parties but resulting as a $1,600 net difference.

MS. SPOEL:  Right.

MR. ANDRE:  And there is no double-counting.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay.

MR. CHENG:  If E.L.K. can go through the supporting documents that we have provided, I am sure they can see that that is done correctly.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay, thank you.

MR. VELLONE:  That's a lot, but I think I am going to let it lie.

I am going to try to do something very quickly here.  We filed a table at tab 3 of the E.L.K. compendium.  It is two pages long.  Mr. Bacon spoke to it.  He prepared it.  He walked the Board Panel through it.  I want to see if we can get agreement on the numbers so the Board Panel has a source of truth to look at.

Would Hydro One be willing to undertake to review this table in detail and just let us know if there's any errors or corrections that you think need to be made?

MR. ENGELBERG:  I thought that Hydro One had agreed to the numbers that were in dispute or that were thought to be in dispute in this table.  Perhaps I could ask the panel, but if you are referring to the 49,000 and the 50,000, I thought that there was no dispute.

MR. VELLONE:  Is that correct?  If that is correct we don't need an undertaking.

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  The two tables, the first are E.L.K. charges to Sellick, Hydro One charges to Sellick.  We're in agreement with that.  The pseudo LTLT is meaningless, because Sellick will not be a LTLT.

And then on the second table, I have already previously said that we're in agreement with the E.L.K. charges to Hydro One using embedded distributor rates, that that delivery component comes out to 126,000, which is the same number that we come up to, and then the second column, Hydro One charged to E.L.K. of $124,000.  I have already said that we're in agreement with that number.

MR. VELLONE:  I am going to take that.

DR. ELSAYED:  But maybe based on those numbers -- Mr. Bacon summarized numbers that were derived from these numbers which I wrote down here, and I am just going to read them to you, and whether you can respond to it now or by way of undertaking, I am interested to know whether you agree with those numbers.

So what I have here is that in the case of Sellick being an E.L.K. customer we were told that E.L.K. would be charged $48,414 by Hydro One and the IESO, and E.L.K. would charge Sellick $49,165.  Okay?

And the other scenario where Sellick is the Hydro One customer it would be the same number for the first item.  E.L.K. still charged 48,414 by Hydro One and the IESO.  E.L.K. will charge to Hydro One $47,309.

MR. ANDRE:  Sorry, I am following you up until now.  This last number you've mentioned --


DR. ELSAYED:  The last number is that E.L.K. will charge Hydro One under this scenario 47,309.

MS. SPOEL:  I think, Mr. Andre, that is the number from the pseudo LTLT charge, but it could also be the 48,577 from the embedded distributor rate.

MR. ANDRE:  Right.

MS. SPOEL:  It is one of those two rates.

DR. ELSAYED:  Then the last number is that Hydro One will turn around and charge Sellick $50,104.

MR. ANDRE:  Okay.

DR. ELSAYED:  Okay.  So these are the set numbers that we were given.

MR. ANDRE:  Right.

DR. ELSAYED:  I guess my question to you is, which of those numbers do you agree with and which ones do you not agree with?

MR. ANDRE:  So the ones that I disagree with are the initial comparison between the 48,414 and saying that that gets offset by the payment from Sellick to E.L.K. of 49,165.

And my disagreement on that is that the full 49,165 should not appropriately be used to offset the 48,414, because they are including charges that are associated with E.L.K.'s distribution system that aren't associated with the sub-transmission and retail transmission service charges.

So they're including four charges that really shouldn't appropriately go to offset the incremental charges to E.L.K., because those charges should go to the benefit of other E.L.K. ratepayers.

So I am referring to the first four charges in the total that comes to $49,165.  So my disagreement is that not all of that 49,165 should go to offset.  And in fact, it is only -- I think I gave this number before.  If you back off those first four charges it is only 46,491.75 that is available to offset the 48,414.

DR. ELSAYED:  Okay.

MS. SPOEL:  Then the remainder, the other two-and-a-half-thousand dollars, whatever it is, that would go to offset other -- it would go into E.L.K.'s other general revenues.

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.

MS. SPOEL:  To offset other costs.

MS. CHRISTIE:  So then the difference is like 3,000 or $2,500?

MR. ANDRE:  Right.

MS. CHRISTIE:  In total?

MR. ANDRE:  In total?

MS. CHRISTIE:  The difference then that we're looking at here between the two scenarios, between what you're suggesting would be the correct scenario and what is being suggested here --


MR. ANDRE:  Right.

MS. CHRISTIE:  -- between the 49 and your 46.

MR. ENGELBERG:  If I could interject here.  It is a cost.  It is not revenue.  Is that correct?  It is a shortfall?

MR. ANDRE:  These would be revenues collected from Sellick that would go towards offsetting the costs to all other GS 50 to 5,000 kilowatt customer class customers associated with E.L.K.'s distribution system assets.

MS. SPOEL:  But if could I go back to Mr. Elsayed's question, do you disagree -- I mean, apart from what is being used to offset, in terms of the amount of money, like the $49,165.22 coming in from Sellick and the $50,104 and so on coming in from Sellick, do you disagree with Mr. Bacon's analysis of those total amounts of money, that those are the appropriate calculations of how much E.L.K. collects or how much E.L.K. would collect, how much Hydro One would collect, how much flows from E.L.K. to Hydro One and to the IESO, how much flows from Hydro One to E.L.K.?

Do you agree with Mr. Bacon's analysis of those numbers, quite apart from -- we understand your issue about the attribution and offsetting.

But the actual calculations in this table, do you agree with his analysis of those?

MR. ANDRE:  I wouldn't so much call them an analysis as just an application of the tariffs.

MS. SPOEL:  Right.

MR. ANDRE:  To the best of my knowledge, the tariffs are being applied correctly, because they are landing on the same numbers that we have come up with.

MS. SPOEL:  That's very helpful.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, would it also be helpful if Hydro One gave an undertaking to provide just a short reconciliation table to show the differences between what Hydro One says is applying the income correctly and applying it, what Hydro One says is incorrectly to show the difference?

MS. SPOEL:  Sure.  That would be helpful, yes.  But also I think it is very helpful to understand that in terms of the application of the tariffs and the flows of money, that there's no disagreement there, because it is very confusing for all of us.

MR. ANDRE:  Yes, I agree.

MS. SPOEL:  For everyone in the room.  Okay, thank you.  Yes, Mr. Engelberg, that would be very helpful.  Thank you so much.

MR. LANNI:  Can we mark that as undertaking J1.1, please.


UNDERTAKING NO. J1.1:  TO PROVIDE JUST A SHORT RECONCILIATION TABLE TO SHOW THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN WHAT HYDRO ONE SAYS IS APPLYING THE INCOME CORRECTLY AND APPLYING IT, WHAT HYDRO ONE SAYS IS INCORRECTLY TO SHOW THE DIFFERENCE

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Vellone, we will let you continue on with your cross-examination and try not to interrupt too often.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you.  I am not even done my cross on in-chief yet.

Mr. Siebert, I think, did I pronounce that properly?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  During your in-chief, you mentioned that if Hydro One was selected to provide service to the Sellick customer, that E.L.K. would end up with a stranded asset.  Did I understand you correctly?

MR. SIEBERT:  I don't think that was my whole statement.  You must not have --


MR. VELLONE:  So let's explore.  The reason why I am focussing on this is because the stranding of assets is one of the considerations that the Board panel takes into account as to whether or not to approve a service area amendment; that is why I zoomed-in on this.

My understanding is that if Hydro One provides service to Sellick, and I think you were talking about possibly connecting to the E.L.K. pole that is on the northeast corner of the Sellick lot or not -- I will bring you back to your testimony there.  I believe you said that if you don't use that pole yourself, that will end up stranded.

That is my recollection.  I might be paraphrasing incorrectly.  I just want to clarify your understanding that that pole would still continue to provide a support function for the line that's travelling eastward along Clark Street and servicing the existing E.L.K. customers.  Is that --


MR. SIEBERT:  If nothing was done about it and the Board didn't make a ruling to have it removed.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  So that's a yes, if nothing was done about it?

MR. SIEBERT:  No.  If we weren't successful -- if E.L.K. was not successful in the service area amendment, Hydro One would like to take over -- to obtain that pole.  If Hydro One was not successful in obtaining that pole, which we don't need, we will disconnect in another fashion, then that would be -- that asset would be there of E.L.K.’s.

MR. VELLONE:  And it would still be utilized to provide a support function for the existing line that runs along Clark Street, providing service to existing customers.  Is that fair to say?

MR. SIEBERT:  It would be -- incorrectly installed as it is, it would be doing that function, yes.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you.  Please feel free to adjust your chair.

MR. SIEBERT:  Scared me.

MR. VELLONE:  If that happens again, we will get you a new chair.

MR. SIEBERT:  That is my heel.

MR. VELLONE:  I do have another question for you, Mr. Siebert.  At the very end of your cross -- or sorry, in-chief, you mentioned that the creation of a bump in the line between the two utilities might create safety concerns.

Can you walk me through that a bit more?  I think it is the first time I heard it.

MR. SIEBERT:  A wrong crew could be called to attend a site, or -- yeah, basically, a wrong LDC.

MR. VELLONE:  The wrong LDC.  So that's the idea.  So the wrong LDCs might be called to attend the site.

MR. SIEBERT:  Well, or the wrong LDC might attend the site and not been called.  There’s multiple reasons why a crew may be out there.

MR. VELLONE:  That can happen on any boundary between service territories?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes, but it wouldn't be as well defined if it had a bump in it.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  You don't have any other bumps in your service territory?

MR. SIEBERT:  Not on Roseborough Road.  You want me to start reviewing them all?

MR. VELLONE:  You're in the Essex area; how about just Essex?

MR. SIEBERT:  The Town of Essex?  I would have to -- I can't think of it right now.

MR. VELLONE:  You don't have to.  I think I have made my point.

Can we turn up the Hydro One response to OEB Staff Interrogatory No. 1(a), which was filed October 20th, 2016?

We will try to get it up on the screen as well, if you want to wait a second.  I am looking at page 2 of 3 of that response.  Can we zoom in on table 1 there and the text above it?  Okay.

My understanding is that Hydro One's current estimated cost to connect the customer is shown in this table, table 1, as $16,103.17.  Is that correct?

MR. SIEBERT:  I believe so, yes.

MR. VELLONE:  Yes.  I am going to try to state what my understanding of your scope of work is, and please correct me if I'm wrong.

My understanding is that your scope of work includes the supply and installation of two poles, a class 2 55-foot elevator Bell tangent pole and a class 3 45-foot road crossing wood pole.

It also includes the supply and installation of roughly 22 metres of conductor, along with the anchors, switches, terminations, meters, PTs and CTs.  Is that correct, from your recollection?

MR. SIEBERT:  I believe so.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.

MR. SIEBERT:  There might be more.

MR. VELLONE:  There might be more?  Okay.

MR. SIEBERT:  Can you review that again?

MR. VELLONE:  Certainly.  I am happy to.  My understanding of your scope of work is that it includes the supply and installation of two poles; first a class 2 55-foot Bell tangent pole and a class 3 45-foot road crossing wood pole.

It also includes the installation and supply of roughly 22 metres of conductor, along with anchors, switches, terminations, metres, PTs and CTs.

MR. SIEBERT:  I don't think -- this offer to connect does not include any terminations.  This offer to connect, our most recent one, is based on the customer requiring a load interrupter pole in the zone.

MR. VELLONE:  You don't include any terminations,   and that is simply because --


MR. SIEBERT:  Not terminations in what I am picturing. I'm picturing underground cable terminations and they're not there, no.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you.  My question actually relates a little bit more to the poles.

If I am reading lines 4 to 6 of your evidence here, which speaks to what is included in the cost of $16,000, I see the scope of work will include items such as the installation of a meter, the installing of the Bell tangent pole and connecting the expansion work to the system.

You don't have to jump forward, but if you jump forward a couple of pages to the actual offer to connect, that is almost exactly the same wording that is used in there.

What I noticed, what jumped out at me is that the class 3 45-foot road crossing wood pole isn't listed there.  Is that a mistake?

MR. SIEBERT:  I can't see what you are referring to right what I am looking at.

MR. VELLONE:  Certainly.  I am looking at lines 4, 5 and 6, which provides a description of what the work includes.

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes, I see what you're saying now.

MR. VELLONE:  It says installing the Bell tangent pole, so I see that, but I don't see reference to installing the Class 3, 45-foot road crossing wood pole.

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes.  It must be an error, it is, in there.

MR. VELLONE:  That same error --


MR. ANDRE:  Sorry, just give us one second?

MR. VELLONE:  Yes.

MR. ANDRE:  Just to clarify, Mr. Siebert, when he says an error, it isn't referenced in the text, but it is included in the numbers, just to be clear.

MR. VELLONE:  That is what I am trying to get to on discovery, is figure out whether it was just an oversight in the textual description or whether -- you're certain that both poles are included in the number?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes, I am.

MR. VELLONE:  That's all I wanted to know.  Thank you.

My understanding of the 16,100 -- leave that up, please.  Sorry.

My understanding of the $16,103.17 is that it is a Hydro One estimate, that you haven't actually done the work.  Is that correct?

MR. SIEBERT:  That's correct.  It is a design, an offer to connect, not an estimate, yeah.

MR. VELLONE:  And being an estimate, I guess there is a risk that when you actually perform the work it might actually end up costing more than 16,103.17; is that fair to say?

MR. SIEBERT:  Costing?  It is a design.  It is not an estimate, yeah.

MR. VELLONE:  Can you elaborate on that distinction, please?

MR. SIEBERT:  Well, it is design, and it's the contract we offer the customer.

MR. VELLONE:  But when you actually go to do the work it might cost a little bit more or a little bit less depending on what actually happens; isn't that --


MR. SIEBERT:  It could cost a little bit more or a little bit less.

MR. VELLONE:  I am trying to wrap my head around what the margin of error in this estimate is, is really what I am trying to do.

And I concocted an undertaking here to try to explore that for the Panel, simply by looking at a sampling of other comparable projects that you've done within the past year, to tell us, how much did the actual costs come in for roughly comparable projects, the installation of two new poles, and hooking up a new customer for this class.  Is that hard to do?  Is that hard to pull together?  If you were to --


MR. ANDRE:  Sorry.  My apologies.  I was speaking -- passed a message to Mr. Siebert while you were giving that last part of your answer.  That was my fault.  If you could just repeat the last part of your question.

MR. VELLONE:  Sure.  I am trying to understand -- I am trying to elicit evidence to try to understand how much over or how much under we might come on this estimate, because fully loaded connection costs are a key determination for the Board Panel in this.  I am just trying to give a range, a margin of error, for the Board Panel to work with.

What I thought was a good way to do that is look at other comparable projects that you have done and tell us, roughly, what the range is in terms of those actual costs, you know, installing two new poles and hooking up a new customer.  You have got to do this fairly often.

Would it be possible to do an undertaking to get some comparable numbers -- maybe -- I am trying to limit scope  -- within the past year?  I am not sure about volume.

MR. ENGELBERG:  We won't give that undertaking.  For the limited amount of work here, a pole, I think we should rely on Mr. Siebert's evidence in-chief and in cross-examination, if you can get him to change that, as to how much it could vary from what Hydro One has estimated, but to look at other jobs on other streets, in other locations, I don't think that would be very helpful.

DR. ELSAYED:  Just to clarify, if there is a level of uncertainty in the estimate, wouldn't the same apply to E.L.K.'s estimate?

MR. VELLONE:  It would certainly apply to the $8,700 that is an estimate.

It would certainly not apply if the -- if the Board Panel accepts what I think is going to be the Hydro One proposition that you include the pole relocation costs of $8,400 that have already been incurred.  That isn't an estimate.  That is a known.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Vellone, I think -- I think it is late in the day to be asking for this kind of evidence.  If there were -- if there were a question about the accuracy of Hydro One's estimates, I think that could have been asked in an interrogatory much earlier on in the process, and I think -- we understand that these are estimates, and we understand that E.L.K.'s are estimates, and I don't think -- I don't think our decision is necessarily going to turn on whether it is, you know, a few dollars one way or the other.  It is not going to be the determining factor, I believe, in this case, or the ability of Hydro One to do an accurate -- a reasonably accurate estimate of what the cost is likely to be.  We will take that into account.

MR. VELLONE:  I am going to accept that as a request to move on, John, please give up.

[Laughter.]

MR. VELLONE:  I will graciously grant that request, because -- the only thing I wanted to note is that I am referring here to Hydro One's response to the interrogatories, and their estimate in there.  We have never had a chance to ask a second round of interrogatories on this.  This is our first time we have seen this and had a chance to ask questions.  That is why I am digging deeper, but I get it.  I think everyone gets the point.  I am going to move on.

Could I ask you to pull up the table that is included in the Hydro One compendium that was circulated at tab 2.  I am looking here at the lower of the two tables, the table titled table 1.  I think you brought us to this earlier, Mr. Andre.

I am focused less on the rate stuff that we were talking about before.  More on the comparison of costs to connection.

Would my interpretation be correct that one of the key distinctions between the E.L.K. view and the Hydro One view on the cost of connection is that Hydro One's position is that the pole relocation costs of 8,432.49 should be included in the total cost of connection for E.L.K.?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  In the first five rows that is the one change that was made.

MR. VELLONE:  Great.  Maybe we could pull up the map that was attached to the service-area amendment application and attachment 1.4.  Zoom out a little bit.

MR. ANDRE:  Sorry, Mr. Vellone, just to be crystal-clear, the 8,432 was included in the original table for E.L.K. and Hydro One, and the change that we made in the table below was to say that it is inappropriate to include it for Hydro One because the $16,103 offer to connect already included -- doesn't rely on the relocation of the pole to connect the customer.

So the change that we made from the table that was submitted by E.L.K. was to delete it from Hydro One's side of the table.

MR. VELLONE:  I understand.  And I also understand the table that was submitted by E.L.K. was made in the form of written argument, that there were several paragraphs that preceded that that said you shouldn't include the costs but if you do you should include it in both columns, and that is what the table was summarizing.  I understand.

I would like to move on to the map, just briefly here.  I think we have established this already.  The north-south street showing on this map that's up on the screen is Roseborough Road, although you can't read the font.

My understanding is that the west side of Roseborough Road is Hydro One service territory, the east side is E.L.K. service territory; is that correct?

MR. SIEBERT:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  The customer in question for this service-area amendment is Sellick Equipment, shown in the bottom left corner of this map; is that right?

MR. SIEBERT:  The date on that map, it might have been different, but that's how it is now, yes, that's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  And were you aware that before the relocation E.L.K. did have an existing pole asset located on the northeast corner of the Sellick property?  It is actually shown in this diagram here.

MR. SIEBERT:  I don't think it was on the Sellick property.  It was on the northeast -- it was on a long utility corridor named Roseborough Road on the west side, yes.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  But you're aware the existing asset was there and it was located in Hydro One's service territory.  Is that correct?

MR. SIEBERT:  It's on Hydro One's service territory side of Roseborough Road, yes.

MR. VELLONE:  And your understanding is that this pole was used to service existing E.L.K. customers located along Clark Street; is that right?


MR. SIEBERT:  I understand why the pole was there.

MR. VELLONE:  So the statement --


MR. SIEBERT:  It was holding in tension, it was a fly tap tension hold pole, yes.

MR. VELLONE:  To service customers on the east side of Roseborough Road.

MR. SIEBERT:  To hold the tension on the conductor that served customers on the east side of Roseborough down Clark Street, yes.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you.  And if I am reading this diagram correctly, the line that is in red with the black Xs going north-south along Roseborough Road, that is Hydro One's M7 line.  Is that correct?

MR. SIEBERT:  It looks correct.

MR. VELLONE:  That runs along the east side of Roseborough Road; is that right?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes.

MR. VELLONE:  So the Hydro One M7 line is located in the E.L.K. service territory.  Is that correct?

MR. VELLONE:  So the Hydro One M7 line is located in the E.L.K. service territory.  Is that correct?

MR. SIEBERT:  The Hydro One M7 is located in the utility corridor on Roseborough Road, yes, on the east side of Roseborough Road.

MR. VELLONE:  Which we established a moment ago --


MR. SIEBERT:  The customers to the east side of Roseborough are E.L.K. customers, correct.

MR. VELLONE:  So I think we established a moment ago that the east side of Roseborough Road is E.L.K. service territory.

MR. SIEBERT:  Hmm-hmm.

MR. VELLONE:  And I think I put a pretty simple proposition to you.  The Hydro One M7 line is located in E.L.K. service territory.

MR. SIEBERT:  Correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you.  Does Hydro One ask for consent from E.L.K. every time you do work on the M7 line located in the E.L.K. service territory?

MR. SIEBERT:  I would think it would be in good utility practice to make E.L.K. aware if I was doing anything in their utility -- in their service territory that may affect the service area amendment.

But if we had to do maintenance on a M7 pole, we probably would not.

MR. VELLONE:  Why not?

MR. SIEBERT:  We're maintaining our line.  Not connecting to a customer of his, not creating a service area amendment.

MR. VELLONE:  But isn't it located in their service Territory?  Shouldn’t you come for consent?

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Vellone, I am not sure where really this is leading.

MR. VELLONE:  I am going to park it.

MS. SPOEL:  We would like to get through this today and I am going to say, you know --


MR. VELLONE:  I made my point.

MS. SPOEL:  Two wrongs don't necessarily make a right and it doesn't -- we understand the practicalities of adjacent service territories and locations of lines.  It comes up frequently.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you.  I will take the hint.  Can we pull up the Hydro One intervenor evidence filed September 22nd, 2016?  I’m looking at page 7.

If I am reading that highlighted section right, you agree with us that the customer shouldn't be charged these relocation costs.  Is that correct?

[Witness panel confers]


MR. SIEBERT:  Yes, the customer should not pay for the relocation costs.

MR. VELLONE:  Great.  My understanding is your position is that despite that, those municipal relocation costs should be included in the Board's assessment of fully loaded connection costs.  Is that right as well?

MR. SIEBERT:  That's correct.

MR. VELLONE:  Is it the fact that -- does your concern here arise out of the fact that this municipal relocation work occurred during the course of an active service area amendment application?  Is that really the source of the concern?

MR. SIEBERT:  That could be part of the answer.

MR. VELLONE:  What's the rest of the answer?

MR. SIEBERT:  Another reason could be the fact that the relocation -- the pole that just simply needed to be removed and could have been kept in E.L.K.'s territory was moved into an advantage spot to connect Sellick for a new service in Hydro One's service territory, causing an SAA.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  I am trying to wrap my head around the policy implications of what you are asking the Board to adopt by including third party relocation work in the total connection costs.

I guess my first question on that is:  Is it Hydro One's position LDCs should refuse to complete municipal relocation work if it’s is requested, if there's an active service area amendment application before the Board?

MR. SIEBERT:  I don't know how to answer that.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I would like to object here.  None of the evidence heard today in cross or in-chief has stated that either party is taking that position, that work should be refused.

All the evidence that was heard today is on the point of whether it should have been moved to where it was moved and whether that was done to advantage the other utility, but not whether the pole had to be removed.

We're talking about the relocation costs and where it was relocated.  So I don't think this is very helpful.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Vellone, I think we have heard quite a bit about the circumstances of pole relocation, probably more than we anticipated given the constrained nature of PO 3.

We allowed Mr. Engelberg a little bit of leeway in cross-examining E.L.K.'s customers.  We have allowed you some leeway in cross-examining Hydro One.  But I think it would be a better use of everyone's time if we could move on.

We understand the issue.  We understand, I think -- I don't think you are going to get a lot from these witnesses, a lot more that is going to help.

We understand the concerns of both parties and maybe we could move on, because this isn't really -- I understand these issues -- should the costs be included or not I think it is probably more a matter of argument at this stage.  Perhaps we can move on to other areas so we can get completed.

MR. VELLONE:  Sure.  I am going to conclude then with a line of questioning around the evidence around the pseudo LTLT charge that was charged to Hydro One.

My understanding is that Hydro One takes the position that this charge that Mr. Bacon has spoken to today doesn't exist.  It's not correct, is that --


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Vellone, given that Mr. Bacon put forward two alternative approaches, the LTLT charge and the embedded distribution charge as two alternative ways that might be billed, what are you hoping to gain by --


MR. VELLONE:  My understanding --


MS. SPOEL:  -- demonstrating a preference for the LTLT charge over the other or -- does it really matter, I guess is what I would say.

MR. VELLONE:  I believe it does on the facts, Madam Chair.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  Then go ahead.

MR. VELLONE:  I will explain why, just so everyone can follow along.  My understanding of the evidence of Hydro One is that they do not intend to install a retail settlement point for Sellick.  Is that correct?

MR. CHENG:  We do not consider additional connection of Sellick at the M7 is considered a retail point of supply.

MR. VELLONE:  Yes, exactly.  The embedded distributor charge that is charged by E.L.K. to Hydro One customers only apply if there is a new retail point of supply installed.

If there's not one, this customer ends up getting settled just like all of the others, neighbouring ones.

So I can explore it or not.

MS. SPOEL:  Go ahead.

MR. CHENG:  Can I add on to that?  I want to answer the question.  I do not consider it as a retail point of supply because the definition of "retail point of supply" is one LDC is asking for another LDC for connection on the other LDC asset.

That's why I am saying it is not considered as a retail point of supply.

MR. VELLONE:  We have a different definition, then.

MR. CHENG:  But your definition is another -- what is the definition, if I may ask?

MR. VELLONE:  It is the definition being used by my client, E.L.K. Energy.

MR. CHENG:  Can I see the distribution system plan definition?

MR. VELLONE:  I don't have that definition handy.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Vellone, I don't think that -- first of all, Mr. Cheng, Mr. Vellone is asking the questions.  The process is he asks the questions and you answer them rather than having a debate back and forth.

If it is a matter of argument about which should be used, I think that is fine.  If you want to establish why certain customers are being charged in a certain way, I think you can ask questions about that.

But I don't think that a debate about what the wording of the code is or your different views about if is probably all that helpful.

MR. VELLONE:  Sure.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I am content to leave to the Hydro One argument that connection of a Hydro One -- of a LDC's customer to its own distribution system inside its own territory is not a retail point of supply, and that can be a matter of legal argument.

MS. SPOEL:  Well, perhaps I can ask this question of both you, Mr. Engelberg, and Mr. Vellone.

I take it there is no issue that if this customer is a Hydro One customer, that there will be a charge by E.L.K. because of the upstream sub-transmission point.

E.L.K. will be charging a rate to Hydro One.  It will either be this so-called pseudo LTLT rate that is on Mr. Bacon's chart, or it will be the embedded distribution rate which is also on Mr. Bacon's table.  You'll charge one or the other.  Is that fair?

MR. VELLONE:  That is certainly our evidence, yes.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg --


MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes, the embedded distribution charge for metering services.

MS. SPOEL:  Yes.  There is going to be a charge of some sort.  So I am not sure -- I mean, if you think it is important for your case to establish that it's going to be one kind of charge versus another then please proceed, but if it doesn't really matter which basis it is calculated on, then maybe we can move on without you trying to establish it through these --


MR. VELLONE:  You can take the hint that I closed my binder.  I am going to say I'm done.  I'm going to take the point.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Lanni, does Board Staff have any questions for Hydro One?

MR. LANNI:  I do have a few questions.
Cross-Examination by Mr. Lanni:

MR. LANNI:  If you could turn to the table in -- table 1 in Hydro One's compendium.  Now, you have already established that this is -- this style and the numbers are based on the table produced at page 16 of E.L.K.'s reply submission.  Very similar.

In-chief or early cross you identified that in the Hydro One column there were brackets around the 124,000 number, and you were thinking aloud and you thought maybe the brackets should be around the $126,000.

Now, I am going to put it to you if you had to resubmit this table, that that is how you would resubmit it.  Is that correct?

[Witness panel confers.]


MR. ANDRE:  I think Mr. Cheng, in his response, clarified that when they do the settlements between Hydro One and E.L.K., that the charge that comes in from E.L.K. to Hydro One for 126,159 is offset by the charge that Hydro One would levy to E.L.K. of 124,000.

So I think you can review in the transcript Mr. Cheng's answer confirmed that in fact that signage is correct.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.

MR. ANDRE:  But I think the statement that I had made that really it is intended to reflect that one payment offsets the other in sort of a broader sense is most helpful.

MR. LANNI:  So let me take a simplistic view.

In the E.L.K. column, if Sellick becomes an E.L.K. customer, there is an incremental embedded distributor charge from Hydro One to E.L.K.

Should that be sub-transmission charge?

MR. ANDRE:  That 124,000 is detailed in table 2, in the same compendium.  So you can just turn one page over.  And you can see that the 124,000 is made up really of just those two things, the sub-transmission charge --


MR. LANNI:  But --


MR. ANDRE:  -- and the retail transmission service charges.

MR. LANNI:  So both -- the two lines are both entitled "embedded distributor charge".  But one of them is a sub-transmission charge.

MR. ANDRE:  The embedded distributor charge from Hydro One to E.L.K., yes, is the sub-transmission charge, plus the transmission -- retail transmission service charges.

MR. LANNI:  Hydro One doesn't charge -- right.  That is the sub-transmission.

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  So I see your point.  So in Hydro One's schedule it is not called embedded distributor.  It is called the ST or ST class tariff.  And it applies to embedded distributors.  And it consists of the ST charge and the retail transmission service charge.

MR. LANNI:  But in the province that's not a unique charge.

MR. ANDRE:  No, no.  All Hydro One ST customers pay that charge.

MR. LANNI:  Whereas the line above that is relatively unique to this instance.

MR. ANDRE:  The embedded distributor charge from E.L.K. to Hydro One?

MR. LANNI:  Yes.

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  You know, there are not nearly as many -- like, Hydro One has a lot of embedded distributors, but we are not embedded in many other LDCs; that's correct.

MR. LANNI:  So let me just understand these numbers.  If Sellick becomes an E.L.K. customer, there's a charge from Hydro One to E.L.K. for $124,000, correct?

MR. ANDRE:  Correct.

MR. LANNI:  And this is because there is conceptually a strain on the feeder, an addition to peak load, and therefore it is a service that Hydro One needs to be compensated for?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.  That's correct.  That additional peak load needs to flow through Hydro One's distribution, sub-transmission system, so we have to charge them for that. And additionally, that peak load flows through Hydro One's transmission system back to the IESO.  So they charge us additional transmission charges.

MR. LANNI:  I'm not there yet.  Hold on.

So if Sellick were to become a Hydro One customer, there would still be an increase to the peak load in the distribution system of E.L.K., so E.L.K. would still be billed or charged that $124,000 amount, because there's still a service that the feeder is providing to the distribution company.

MR. ANDRE:  Because of the metering arrangements.

MR. CHENG:  I think that only for the metering arrangement, because if the metering is not where they are, then actually there would be no --


MR. LANNI:  But the $124,000 amount doesn't change -- right.

MR. ANDRE:  Correct.

MR. LANNI:  However, if Sellick is a Hydro One customer, then there's also a service that E.L.K. is providing to Hydro One.  And that's the reading at the wholesale meter.  And that's what this $126,000 figure is for.

MR. ANDRE:  Right.  That reading at the wholesale meter means that E.L.K. now has to charge Hydro One their embedded distributor classification charges.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.

MR. ANDRE:  Which really is, you know, a flow-through of their LV.  Our sub-transmission become their LV charges and a flow-through of the transmission charges, plus the costs associated with billing and metering that wholesale meter.

MR. LANNI:  So the $1,594 incremental settlement, can I view that as being what the wholesale meter charge service is to --


MR. ANDRE:  Yes.

MR. LANNI:  -- Hydro One?

MR. ANDRE:  Effectively, yes.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  I think I understand that.  Now, in this table, in Hydro One's table 1, the third line from the bottom, in E.L.K.'s column, there is a blank space as it was filed.

There was discussion today about a $108,000 figure.  Is that what goes in that blank space?

MR. ANDRE:  Well, it would go below -- you could keep extending this table.  It wouldn't go in the blank space, because it is not a charge from E.L.K. to Hydro One.

The $108 figure that was mentioned by Mr. Bacon in his testimony, he was indicating that that was the additional delivery charges that would be collected from Sellick that would be used to offset the 124.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  And there's been a lot of discussion about the incremental impact on customers for E.L.K.

Can you just touch upon what the incremental impact would be in both scenarios on Hydro One's customers?

MR. ANDRE:  So Sellick's load could be accommodated by Hydro One's sub-transmission system, and so there wouldn't be any additional sub-transmission system assets required.  So we don't anticipate having to increase those costs.

And the additional load, while it would help to theoretically reduce that sub-transmission cost for all Hydro One customers, because you now have more load over which to spread the ST costs, I don't imagine that the load would be big enough, given the size of Hydro One's ST load, to actually reduce the rates to the fourth decimal place.

But in principle, yes, the Sellick load being connected to Hydro One would actually reduce the rates for other ST customers of Hydro One.

And on the transmission side, as I said, the additional -- the additional monies that we get from Sellick to pay for transmission would essentially flow up through Hydro One to the IESO.  They're offsetting.  Sellick would pay additional transmission charges if they were connected to Hydro One as well, but those would be used to offset the transmission charges that we are levied from the IESO.

So for Hydro One customers there would be, if anything, a marginal reduction to their sub-transmission rates.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  Those are the questions I am going to ask about the rates.

Very briefly, I want to talk to you about the pole relocation and those costs.

When did Hydro One meet with the municipality to discuss the extension on Clark Street?

MR. SIEBERT:  I became aware of that when we initially started to design out there, we were -- we designed an overhead industrial subdivision and I -- there was a discussion between Mr. Macaulay and the DX rationalization group, John Boldt.

And then he made me aware that we can't have an overhead subdivision there because it is a town bylaw.

So that was on May 27th, and then I went to speak to the town planner and he was on vacation.

I talked to the assistant planner, his name is Jeff Watson.  He returned my call in a week.  We were discussing -- we didn't discuss the pole relocate or remove.  We were just discussing the subdivision and if there was an approved plan of subdivision, which he indicated there was.  But there was still some items that were left open, such as the electrical service.

MR. LANNI:  That was -- you said May 27th.

MR. SIEBERT:  May is when I first learned it.

MR. LANNI:  What year?

MR. SIEBERT:  This year.  Yes.  And then I would have had to.

MR. LANNI:  2016?

MR. SIEBERT:  Yes, 2016 – sorry, not 2017.

I think he was off for a week or so until I really got a hold of him.  So in early June or something like that.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  Those are my questions, thank you.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I have one question in redirect.

MS. SPOEL:  Yes.  We are just conferring amongst ourselves whether we have any because the last word will be yours.  We have no questions for the panel.  So Mr. Engelberg --


MR. ENGELBERG:  I promise you my question isn't about that pole.

[Laughter]

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.
Re-Examination by Mr. Engelberg:


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Andre, you will recall that the Chair asked you during your evidence if there would be some benefit to the other ratepayers of E.L.K. regarding the connection, and you said there would be a temporary benefit until new rates were set.  Is that correct?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  You said there would be a temporary benefit.

Now, what the Chair asked you about when she mentioned that temporary benefit, I wanted to ask you, would the temporary benefit to E.L.K.'s other ratepayers during that temporary time period be enough to offset all of the additional costs that you spoke about in your evidence that would be cross-subsidized by the other E.L.K. ratepayers?

MR. ANDRE:  No.  I think the analysis that we walked through in that interrogatory, in terms of how much of the 22,000 in LV costs would be paid for by Sellick and how much of the $89,000 in transmission costs would be paid for by Sellick, the difference is too large to be made up by any small changes that would happen to rates.

MR. ENGELBERG:  So are you saying that even during this temporary period, that there is an incremental cost to be paid by all other E.L.K. ratepayers, if E.L.K. were to connect Sellick?

MR. ANDRE:  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  Those are all of my questions.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.
Procedural Matters:


It is twenty to four.  There had been some discussion -- Mr. Engelberg, you had your witnesses give an undertaking to do a table showing the --


MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes.  Undertaking J1.1.

MS. SPOEL:  Yes.  So given that, I don't think it is possible to do oral argument today.

MR. VELLONE:  I am in your hands, Madam Chair.

MS. SPOEL:  I am assuming -- we had sort of thought we mate might be able to get that sort of thing done and have enough time this afternoon, but --


MR. ENGELBERG:  We would prefer to do it written.

MS. SPOEL:  I think it might be preferable, if you don't mind, Mr. Vellone, waiting for that material from Mr. Engelberg and then doing a brief written argument.

MR. VELLONE:  Yes.  I am in your hands, Madam Chair.  I am prepared to do oral today, if you like.

MS. SPOEL:  I think that would be better all around because there is no point proceeding with argument until the record is complete and we do have that one undertaking to come.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

MS. SPOEL:  Can you give us an indication, Mr. Engelberg, of when you might expect that to be available?

MR. ENGELBERG:  I would say we could do it by mid-day on Monday.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  Mr. Vellone, why don't you -- I will leave it to Mr. Lanni or Board Staff to connect with the parties, in terms of what a reasonable schedule is for filing some written argument.

I think shorter is better, because it is better for us because we can remember what the evidence was.  If we wait weeks and weeks, we can't -- we have moved on to other things and we can't remember any of it.

MR. VELLONE:  I am willing to get commit to get argument-in-chief in maybe a day or two after I get the undertaking response.

MS. SPOEL:  That would be great.

MR. ENGELBERG:  We can have ours in the following week, some time during the week of February 21st.

MS. SPOEL:  Okay, that would be good.  Thank you.

With that, I think we are adjourned today.  Thank you very much all of the witnesses.  Your evidence was very helpful.  And it is a confusing scenario.
--- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 3:40 p.m.
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